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1\IONTSIOA'S location seems'o be sufficient. Such grazing lands
·as 'U.'ell as garden lands 'as m~ b~ required for tribe 'Should be

securtd to them at geeting bJ Parllament. Need 'not be
fixed just now." The definltidIl or MONTSIOA'S location
given by Sir H. ROBINSON-was If the garden ground and grazing
alJds of-which the Chief and 'hls tribe were in the undistuJ:bed

l)o:session in May last, when they were formally tp,ken under
British protection.~' Events have shown that it would have been
morC:' satisfactory jf Her Majesty's Imperial Government had
(,8:nilidly said that they distrusted the Cape lHnistry, and that
nIthr ugh they permitted Cape Ministers to proceed to Bechuana­
bnd they had no intention of acceaing to any settlement arrived
at. Under these depressing circumstances the Premier and
Treasurer of the Colony uudertook their thankless mrssi'Jtt.

v.
THE affairs of Stenaland are closely connected with those of

Land Goshen, and there is throughout cumplete similal'ity in the
circumstances. "Dr between MASSOUW and MANKOROANE
originated with the latter, who according to the statement of
Captain NOURSE in his telegram to Sir H. ROBINSON, dated
Febluary 9th, 1882 (a), n is entirely to blame for its commence­
ment. MASSOUW is acting in exactly the same way as
1\1"OSHETTE, and derives gra.lt assistance from the Transvaal
State. Both Chiefs are actively employing white men to fight
for them. MA..sSOUW is raising 300 Boers to receive half booty
aud a farm each in l\fANKOROANE'S territory should they drive
him off it." l\:lASSOUW placed the true state of the caee before
Captain NOURSE when he said (b)" I wish to explain to you
th'it MANKOROANE had a large number of white men (English­
men) fighting for him. These men are volunteers fl"Om the
Diamor.d Fields. • • • I also hear th'1t l\:lA~KORO.A.NE has

(a) Blue-book [C. 8381], pa.ge 34.
(b) Blue-book [C. 8381], page 4:9.
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sent to the Fields to raise ~ore men; so I have also given orders
to raise volunteers, Boers." MASSOUW further stated that war
had been made upon him "becau~e I assisted .MOSHETTE with
men to fight against MONTSIOA.lit MANKOBOANE took up the
same position as }1'ONTSIOA. did, that is to say, that he was
Englieh and Anti-B()er, and that the Transvaal was at the
bott.om of tbe disturbances. "During the war between the
'English and Boerf:'," said MANKOROANE (a) to Captain ~: OURSE,

on February 4th, 1882, "DAVID MASSOUW and ROCHOEM,

although my subjects, sided against .me and 'wished to assist the
Boers. • • • • • • I have always been a faithful ani
humble ally of the Blitish Government not only in worda but in
acts. The petty Chiefs now in rebellion, viz., BOCHOEM, DAVID

1\1.ASSOUW, ~OKJALUI..A..DB and MOSHETTE, are against me, they
are algo being excited and put up to fighting against me by the
Boers whose object ifJ to get my country, being dissatisfied with
the terms of the CQnvention." On March 20th, 1882,
l\fANKOBOANE complained to Major LOWE (b) that ". the Boers
are helping their friends, and I am the friend of the English, but
have no he~p from my fliends.h Just as in MONTSlOA'S case,
lIANKOROANE continued to implore the British Government to
save him, but in vain. Strict neutrality should be p1.·eserved.
Complaints were made in the same ma.nner 89 by MONTSIOA. that
the Transvaal Government did nothing to check their subjects
from crossing the border. According to Mr. HUDSON'S state­
ment to Sir H. ROBINSON in a telegram received on June 2nd,
188~, "No really effioient action is taken by field-cornets to
prevent Boers passing and re-passing." The policy of lookin~ to
the Transvaal Government to do everything was of little utility.
Indeed, it was hard~y fair to expect a. long boundary Hlle such
as that running from Ramatlabama southward could be so
carefully watched as to prevent small parties ofmen from crossing
and re-crossing. On June 9th DA.REKI, Chief of the Batlaros,
·whose country lay to tho westward of },IA.:s"KOROANE'S" craved
the aid of the British Government, but Sir H. ROBINSON, whose
hands were of course tied, was unable to accede to the request or

(a) BIlle-book [0. 3381], page 50.
(b) Blue-book rOo 8881], page 85.
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to do more than inform the applicant that he did not
understand him to imply that he based "hiN request for
intervention on anything but the friendly sentiments
which Her MajestY'R Government has always entertained
towards you." The result of MANKOROANEfS ill-advised
hostilities might have easily been foretold. Through the aid of
white volunteers that Chief was-like MOKTSIOA-crushed to
the ground. On July 26th, 1882, a treaty of peace was entered
into when MANKOROANE-like MONTSIOA undet similar cir­
cumstances-lost the greater portion of the country over whi:cb
he claimed chieftainship, including his valuable Cf ploughing lands
between De Gasp and the Moroquane Range running in a direct
line from Taungs to the latter range about thirty-five miles and
extending westward into Stellaland about twenty-five miles" (a).
1he terms of peace are refen'ed to in Sir H. ROBINSON"S
telegraphic despatch to Lord KIMBERLEY, dated August 6th,
1~8a (b), a~ follows :-" Chiefs to be independent; a Commission
to define boundaries between them and to assign farms of 4,000
aetes to each of MA.ssouw's freebooting volunteer~, presumably
from MANKOROANE'S country; any differences between Com­
missioners as to boundaries or later between Chiefs and their
subjects to be settled by Government of South African Republic,
whuse dfci~ion is to be final. Botll sides agree never to· call in.
protection oj any Government hut that of Sore tIt African Rep,i61ic,
under wlwse prolectio'I''' tltey state they will be safe and ullmolelted,
D7I.d request tftat no other Government will interfere. TIles, ttrms
are substantially those proposed by KRUGER to HUDSON, and
/lave olJviour:lg been dictated by the frtebcoters. MA~KOROA.NE

has reluctantly I4ccepted them being compelled he says by dire
necessity to do so," MONTSIOA reluctantly signed a treaty
under the compuleion of dire neceEsity, its tel'ms are said
to have been dictated by If freebooters," the protection of the
South African Republic was invoked, and fatms were
assigned to the volunteers who aided his foe. If the circum­
stances under which the latter treaty was obtailied Wlre
such as now to justify its being ignored, why not .ignore l\!ANS

(a.) Notes of interYiew with MANltOBOl•• Appendix A.
(~) Blue-book [C. 8419J, page 24.
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KOBOANE'S treaty? Mr. MACKENZIE take~ up a logical
position when he says" Begin de novo," but, however logical;,
it is not a safe position, and few will agreo with him es­
pecially in view of his own action in Stellaland. Many
contend, equally logically, that both treaties should be respected.
Her Majesty's Imperial Government have wisely decidei to
.ecognize MANKOBOANE'S treaty and all rights to land-about
400 or 500 farms-acquired by white volunteera or freebfloters
under it, and, if they had gone one step further and recognized
the rights of MOSHETTE'S volunteers under the treaty of
October, 1882, amounting only to about 140 farms, the British
taxpayer would not have been called upon to pay one shilling
for a Bechuanaland expedition, he would not incur the risk of
having that remote countl'Y thrown on his hands for the future,
and the Cape Colony would not have its position e:ldangered
by l'evulsion of feeling in England. In December, 1882, the
boundary line between 'MASSOUW ana MANKOBOANE provided
f"r by the treaty wa3 bea~oned off, and the Chairma.n of the line
inspectors gave notice of the position of tho beacons to MA.N­

KOROANE, who was not present. On January 16th, 1883,
MASSOl1W issued a Proclamation declaring the line fixed by the
inspectors to be the boundary line for the future, and on J anuar,.
18th, 1883, the Chairman of the Bestuur or Provisional Com­
mittee of Management nominated by the voiunteers was ap­
pointed to be Administrator of the territory with power to Issue
the requisite land titles, to govern the country by civilized laws,
and to proclaim it under the title of SteUaland (a). The
farms were disposed of by lottery on February 27th, 1883.
As occurred in MONTSIOA'S case, MANKOROANE soon grew
diasatisfiea, and ill the same 'Way tried to repudiate his treaty.
Inhis petition to Sir H.ROBINSON (b) datedFebruary3rd,1883, he
complained "that the men calling themselves 'M ASSOUW's

volunteers' have appropriated nearly the whole of Illy territory
and have beaconed oft" a boundary linc, surveyed a township called
Vryburg, and are now beacoaing off'the cOllntry into farms; they
have established a Government called' StelIaland Sta.te,' and are

(tJ) Treaty, &C. Appendix
(J) Blue-book [0. 3686], page 16.
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levying taxes upon traders &I.'d others. t! •• The country
remaining to me, as beaconed oft' by them~ is much too small
for my people and I shall be compelled under these circum­
stances to fight again unless I obtain some assistance from
Her Majesty's Government, which I humbly crave." He
further described the new Stellaland Government as '" corr:­
posed of freebooters who have stolen my country. On February
15th, 1884, Sir H. ROBINSON made a request to the ~CAliLEN
1\1 inistr;r for the loan of some of the border police " for
the purpose of maintaining order in Bechuanaland," to which Mr·
MERRIMAN replied" that the force under lIajor LOWE is so
small, and so occupied in police duties that they are unable to
comply ",~th the request for its employment over the border in
measures which, if undertnkfn by Colonial fOl"CeS in the present
state of information, would be entirely misunderstood And might
cause prejudicial complications." On February 22nd, 1883, the
Secretary of State for the Colonies suddenly woke up to the
necessity of doing something. .A Minute to Ministers dated
February 22nd, 1883, transmitted a copy of a telegram from the
Colonial Office inquiring' whether the Colonial Government
"will give all facilities If Her Majesty's Government organize a
police force against British SUbjfcts and desertera in 1hl
:Bechuana country." This was a case with a. vengeance of attempt­
ing tt> U lock the Rtnble door after the steed had been stolen."
1hQ absurdity (f organizitJ~ a police force after MANKOROANE
had been depl"ived of the bulk of his country would have been
apparent to anyone ey.cept a political RIP VAN WINKLE during
whose sleep Stellaland bad been established The SCANLEN
Ministry of courEe agreed to grant facilities~ but they properly
pointed out that the course proposed would be lU"actically vaJue­
less "unless lIer Mlljesty's Governmen1i is prepared to assume
the responsibility ofmaintainiog a Protectorate in Bechuanaland.'"
The next plan which suggested itself to RaJ: Majt>sty's Govern­
ment was that already mandoned of making "moderate allow­
ances" to MONTSIOA and MAN'KOROANE when they should be
" dl"iven out of their country" (a). On March 30th, 1883, MAN-

(4) Blue-book l C. 8686], page 52.
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KOROANE again applied to Sir H. ROBINSON for assistance, sayiug­
"Should your Excellency grant me 2,000 M::trtini-HenrYi,
wi th the .ammunition thereof, I would be in a position to protect
my people and couRtry, and I would most willingly either return
them to the Govt'rnment, after ejecting the freebooters, paying
for the ammunition which ml:\y have been expended, or else buy
both the guns and the ammunition from the Government" Tho
Chief appears Etill to ha.ve looked upon his trea~y with MASSOUW
3S 3 de3.u let'er, for when Cobnel FERREIRA-who \va3­
employed by the Transvaal Government to arrest any Transvaal.
l>urgherd causing' disfurbances on the border-inform~d l\'L\.N­
KOROANE that there was some difficulty in acceding to ~ r~quest

of his as Mr. VAN NIEKERK objected, l\IANKOROANE coolly
said" Mr. NIEKERK is the Administrator of th'lt portion of
my country which DAVIP MASSOUW's volunteers have pr,)­
claimed ~tenaJ.and State, and a Transvaal burgher; tberefure
one of those who should have been arrested as a disturber of t!. e
·peace in :my country." Finally in his despatch to Lord DERBY
(a) dated May 26th, 1883, Sir. H. ROBINSON laid down fonr
courses open to Her Majesty's Governmont with regard to
Be<iliuanaland. The first was " To clear the freebooters out of
the territories belonging to :MANKOROANE and MASSOUW by
force," - bu.t as His EXGellency added "Her Maje::ty'.:I
Government have, however, already decided ogainst
this course." Surely, after so p08itive an abandonment of
any intention to upset the titles of the volunteers of
l:lOSHETXE lond l\lAssouw it would be unjust a.fter the
lapse of more than a year and a half to disregard claims
under the respective treaties, especially in cases where
bono' fide purchases of rights have been made. As soon as it
became known that aConference was to be held in Lon,lon to
discuss the proposed revision of the Convention of Pretoria,
MANKOn.OANE telegraphed in October, 1883, to the Acting
Governor, Lieut.-General the Honourable LEICESTER SMYTH,
asking first to be allowed to attend the Conference, and, aftel-­
wards, n that IIer Majesty's Govcrnment would permit the Rev.

(a), BIlle-book [00\36861 page 70.
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Mr. MA.CKENZIE to represent his interest." Lord DERBY
answered as follows on October 26th, 1883: - "Inform
MA.:NKOROA.NE I readily consent to hear l\fACKENZIE on any
point affecting his ilJterests, but MA~KORO.ANE cannot be
formally admitted to or represented at any Conference hel e.'"
Whether Mr. MA.CKE:NZIE'S subsequent appointment as Deputy
Commissioner in Bechuanaland-after his identifying himself as
• partisan of one of the most important p lrties-was .judicious
may be open to doubt. But Mr. MA.CKENZIE was appointed.
'1 he announcement of his appointment was not received with
latisfaction in the Cape Colony. It was thought by many
persons having a thorough knowledge of South African aft'ai s
ar.d of' tl.e character (f the people to be an ill-judged appoint­
ment and the harbinger of' trouble. Against Mr. MACKENZIE
!Ju'sonally not a word could or can be said. He wes and is a
man of great earnestness and great honesty, but it is doubtful
",·hether gentlemen whose lives have previously been devoted
to mifsionary labour are best caiculu,ted to deal with political
C( ml'licafions, e~pecially if those complications arise out of affairs
£onn(c~ed with the people amongst whom they have laboured
as miuonaries and of whom they are the adrocates. The Cape
.Argus-wMch, if not the official organ of the ECANLEN Ministry
tlien in office~ streLuom!l1y Bupported them-censured the appoint­
menton February 25th, 1884, in the following language :-"When
in Eir BARTLE FRERE'S days thel'e were missionaries who made
thcmselves the keenest of partisans on his side we protested in no
measured terms. • • • The Boers and their sympathisers can
ICarcelyl:e blamed if they regard Mr. MACKENZIE al'1 a self-seeking
schemer who \Vent to England and stirred up political agitation to
be crowned by the bestowal of an important political appoint­
ment upon him~ e1f. ' Ret Vollt.s61ad, a thorough-going supporter
of the E'CANLEN Ministry, expres~ed the following opinion :­
" It is d fficult to imagine what dip~omatic design Lord DERBY
fan have had in making such an appointment, except that of
riding rough-shod over public opinion hrre. That he can have
eonsulted the authorities in this country is impossible; indeed
we have good reason to believe that everything was done by them
to avert the mistake which had been made. It is, however, the



57

old story: those on the spot who are most interested and most
capable of judging are passed by and discredited. Moreover
even if Mr. MACKENZIE was not known to have pre­
judged the case as he has done, the simple flllct that he is
a missionaIY would surely be enough to disqualify him for
the political office to which be has been appointed." Subsequent
events brought about no change in public opinion. During the
debate on the resolutions relating to Bechuanaland in the House
of Asscml-ly in July, 1884, both sides agreed in condemnation
of Mr. MACKENZIE'S appointment. Ftom the Opposition side
Mr. MERRIMAN, Commissioner or Crown Lands and Public
Works in the SCANLEN Ministry, stated that elf the idea that black
and white men could live together in that territory was killed
the moment Mr. MACKENZIE 'was appointed th -re," and Mr.
LEONARD, Attorney-General in the SCANLEN Ministry, pointed
out that whatever disturl anae3 there were in Bechuanaland
" were in consequence of dissatisfaction on the part of the white
people :with the rule of Mr. MACKEN ZIE." F rom the Minis..
terial side tho Premier (M~" UPINGTON) said "that the
"eight of evidence went to show that the position of Mr.
MACKENZIE in Bechuanaland was not a slltisfact ry one; and
it would be to the advantage and peace cf South Africa if
arrangementa could be made for a Colonial officer to be placed
in that territory pending the annexation of it to the Cape."
During the early months of 1884 the ~tate of MANKOROANE'S
country \'fas very bad. The Batlapings were continually stealing
from the people (f Stellaland and from MASSOUW and other
natives, aud they claimed crops which they had sown within
Stellaland, but - exactly as iu Land Gosht>n - the Stella­
land people refuEed to let them reap the crors. MAS­
souw becau: e fO hTitated at the stealing from his people
that he Eent out a commando on the ]3th March to attack
MANKOROANE, but through the interferen('e of Mr. VAN
NIEKERK, Administrator of Stellaland, a conflict was avoided.
For this eervice Mr. VAN NIEKERK was thanked by Lord
DEBBY. Captain BOWER, R.N., the Imperial Secretary, was
abollt this time sfnt (\n a mission of inquiry into BcchuanalandJ
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and in his telegram to the High Commissioner (a) dated March
14th, 1884,80 far from denouncing the "freebooters" as murderers
and land thieves he stated that" in Stellaland the Europeans are
quiet and orderly, awaitingevents. I have everywhere been treated
with the greatest I"espect and con:fidencp." Telegraphing on
March 24th, 1884, Captain BOWER said that MI'. NIEKERK

deSel"Ved "great credit fOl' the loyal way in which he has
maintained his engagement despite the very great provocation he
has received~" To show bow dangerous it is to give credence to
loose charges against the Europeans settled ill Bechuanaland, it
is only necessary to turn to Captain BOWER'S official report (h)
dated April 3rd, 1884, wherein he admits how agreeably dis­
a.ppointed he was with regard to Vryburg, which he had expected
to find" a den of freebooters and ~rigan<h," and his further report,
dated April 7th, 1884, in which he states that "the present
inhabitants of StelJaland appear to rnA to be a respectable class,
quite equal to the ordinary class of Colonial farmera." It
may be said that Captain BOWER'S reports were (ramed with an
object, and that, therefore, 100 much'reliance fhould not be placed
upon them; the policy of lIer Majesty's Government then being
to conciliate the people of Stellaland, and by detachin~ their
sympathies from the pet'ple of Land Goshen to hola~e the latter
to such an extent as to keep them quiet u~~tn the Colonial
Parliame.nt should llgree to annex the country. But in fact
Captain .BOWER'S estimate of the peop!e, the bulk of whom
at that time were " freeboters " or volunteers" was not
pitchc d teo highly. If CUI tain BOWER had protracted
his visit although it entailed the uncomfortable consequences of
"slfeping only four nights in bed,." and hnd devoted as much
attention to the affairs of La.n·d Goshen as to those of Stella.
land, he might have been able to give Her :\Jajesty's Imperial
Govemment valuable advice. A Ehort convers.ation w~th

.l\fONTSIOA seems to have enabled Captain BOWER to arrive at
the astounding conclusion that U the terlitory left to ~fONTSIOA.

by the Convention is barely sufficient to provide sustenance fG1'
bis large tribe and the cattle bewnging to them," and that it

(a.) Blne-book [c. 4:036], page 27.
(b) BIlle-book [0. 4:036J, page 84,.



seemed "to bo clearly impossible to grant a. single farm out of
the small territory which is now reserved to MONTBIOA n to
anyone much less to the freebooters" whose claim moreover is on
MOSHE'XTE and not MONTSIOA." Captain BOWER was also
enabled to report, probably frolD inspection through a field-glass'
that the people of Land Goshen" appear to be a very different
stamp to the Stellalanders:' The gallant gentleman" did not
visit their laager, or town, as they call it" (a). As might have
been apprehended the· announcenlent of :\h·. MACKENZIE'S

appointment caused great dissatiEifaction amongst the people of
Stellaland. A numerously signed petitioa was presented to the
Legislative Assembly of the Cape Colony reflecting severely on
'Mr. MACKENZIE, and praying for annexation to the Cape
Colony. Mr. C. G. BODENSTEIN, Chairman of the National
Committee, wrote Sir H. ROBINSON. on April ~th, 1884, to the
effect that "the inhabitants of Stellaland I ave unnnimoUl!l1y
decided. on account of the general disc 'ntent that prevails
with regard to the a.ppointment of the British Resident
for Bechuanalaud, to petition the Cape Parliament for annexation
to that Colony." Mr. VAN NIEKERK, Admi~istrQ,{orof Stena­
land-a thoroughly honest mall-also addressed a letter to the
members of the Coloni&l Legislature urging the necessity for
annexation to the Cape Colony, although frankly admitting that
"I cannot and will not deny that it was my inteliltion as Adminis­
trator of Stellaland to form an independent State in this part of
t.he coun1ry • • • • or, ill case of failure, to have it form 0.

ptrtion of the ~outh Aflican Republic." Mr. MACIENZIE

arrived at Taungs, the residence of MANKOROANE, on ApI il
80th, 1884. MANXOROANE at once threw hhllstlf into the arms
of Mr. It-JACKENZIE., thinking-misguided man-that the change
in the .ystem of Government wOlJ1d restore to him something of
what he had lost. He was so courteoui as even to desire 'Mr...
l\!.ACKENzIE to save himself the trouble -of a tour to l\IONTSIOA'S

oountry, " saying that he would call everyone to Taungs." l\fr.
MACKENZIE'S estimate of the native character will be found in
his despatch to Sir II. .ROBINSON (lJ), dated 14th lIay, 1884, in

(a) Blue-book [C. 4036], page 45.
(~) Blue·book [C. 4194:], page 14.
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which he says :-" I learned that his (MANKOROANE'S) object
was really tribal aggrandizement by means of my influence, he
having already spoken of this meeting and said that it would
then be seEm who were tho enemies of MA.NKOROANE

it they stayed away from the meeting. Of course this
is only what might have been expected of a Chief; but
there is no reason why we should aid him in such a policy."
On May 9th, 1884, after his arrival at Vryburg, the seat of
Government in Stellaland, Mr. MACKENZIE read his Commission
and announced that" Her Majesty was pleased to exercise her
authority over Bechuanaland," but the Administrator, Mr.
VAN N IEKERK appears to have thought that something more
formal should have been done, and asked if the country had
been proclaimed, to which Mr. lIACKENZIE replied (a) " You
asked me if I had proclaimed the country, ancI I said no; a Pro­
clamation is of a certain form and in a certain way." The
Admini~trat()r then put the question :-" Must I understand
that by reading hiEs Commission Mr. MACKENZIE takes over
the country 0.8 British terlitory and 8S part of Be.chuanaland 1"
'rhe reply made by Mr. MACKENZIE was :-" Th!\t is the fact."
Subsequently Mr. MACKENZIE, "in the Queen's name"
imposed on Mr. VAN NIEKERK, "the head of the
people of Stellaland-subject to acceptance by the latter
gentleman-the responsibility of the temporary management
of this district until its affairs are finally settled," appointed
him cc to take into his charge and be ]esponsible for
all documents, moneys and things belonging to and con..
nected with the Government of Stellaland," left the con­
tinuance or discontinuance of heads of department~ likewise in
Mr. VAN NIEKERK'S hands, and commended" the people and
the country to the grace and mercy of Gon." Jealousies and
difficulties Boen arose. Questions were put as to land titles, the
debt of Stallaland, and the neces:-ity for Mr. VAN NIEKERK

ta.king the oath of allegia.nce. The result was tht\t Mr.
MACKENZIE, to use his own words, went " the length of
promising farms to the original volunteers or due compensRtion

(a) Blue-book [0. 4194], page 28.
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in land or money." He also dated that" the incoming Govern­
ment is pledged to meet the debts o£ the old one," and pointed
out that" Mr. VAN NIEKERK now holds office with your consent
in the name of the Queen, whose servant he is henceforth" (tJ}
All Mr. MACKENZIE'S promises and concessio~swere insufficient.
He was still merely ab~e to say cc Something had been done in the
right direction • • • • :lnd the full establishment of the new
Government is now, I hope, merely a question of time.." He
could only hope that the geBeral public meeting of the burghers
would authorize Mr. VAN I'IEKERK to take the oath of
allegiance to the Queen. Mr. 1\1ACKENZIE'S hopes were not
realised. A.t the general meeting of burghers held on M8Y 20th.
1884, the following resolution was carried by a. Ia.rge
majority:-" That seeing that the people of SteIlaland
have addressed a petition to the Cape Parliament
praying for annexation to the Cape Colony they are in honuur
bound to wait until they have received a reply to the said
petition." So late as July 6th, 1884, affairs remained so
unsettled that Sir H. ROBINSON was obliged to say to Mr.
MACKENZIE :-" I cannot see what would be gained by our
discussing details of Vryburg Government till we k!!ow whether
Stellalanders mean to come under us." Mr. M...lCKENZIE about
that time had taken up a position of hostility to the annexation
of Bechuanaland to the Cape Colony and was urging on Sir H.
ROBINSON a shadowy system of ten"itorlal government and a
proposal for the establishment of a reserve force of one thousand
volunteers who should be "Christian Citizens " entering into the
cr true knightly spirit" of the undertaking and who would be
Ie the ]'ight class of occupants for vacant farms in native terri­
tories" (b). That would have been going perilously close to the
establishment of a regiment of "Chdstian fl'eebooters," and it
did not commend itself to Sir H. ROBINSON, who seems to have
begun at last to suspect Mr. MACKENZIE'S judgment. He
declined to approve of a suggestion made by Mr. l\IACKENZIE
that he should leave Bechuanaland for Cape Town, on the
ground that Mr. MACKENZIE should remain at his post whilst

(a) Blue-book [C. 4:194], page 22.
(11) Blue-book [0. 4194:], page 56.
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the country \vas in the state it then was, and he added" your
reserve scheme appears to me to be wholly impracticable. You are
under a complete delusion if you think you can obtain any
help at present from either the Government, the PSI"Iiament, or
the public opinion of the Colony." A warning was also given to
Mr. M..l.CKENZIE not to "further increase Civil Establishments
without the authority of Her Majesty's Government," and he
was told that" if Stellaland comes under us, of course any
expenditure on that communit.y must be borne of itself This
should be clearly understood from the first." The tightening
of the purse-strings at this time seem. to have been caused by
the disinclinatioll shown by the Colonial 1\1 inistry to fix: the
Colony with responsibility for expenditure in Bechuanaland
before annexation, for as Sir H. ROBINSON telegraphed (a), with
a touch of sadness, to Mr. MACKENZIE, '" There is little pros­
pect, I am afraid, of any. contribution towards the expenses of
Bechuanaland from this Colony." The same economical reason
l)robably led to' a request of Sir H. ROBINSON that Mr.
MA.CKENZIE would let him know how he contemplated paying
" for the Assistant Commissioners with XONTSIOA. and MANKO­

ROANE, and what chance there is of raising revenue from those
Chieftt:' When Mr. MACKENZIE left Rtellaland in May for
Maffekmg, he "lett mattel"S in a transitional state" (b) "instead
ofmaking certain of the secure establishment of British .jurisdiction
and, on his l"eturn, he was obliged again to meet the people.
A l"esolution wa~ passed by the Yolks' Committee on June 27th,
1884, to the effect that in the event of the Cape Parliament
declining to comply with the prayer of the petition for annexation
the points already discussed with Mr. l\fACKENZIE at Vryburg
should be submitted to him ~for his ratification, aud that, upon
such ratification, the Administrator, Mr. VAN NIEKERK, should
be advised to take the oath of office within a given time. Being
under the impression- from infOl"IDation received from Cape
Town- ·that annexation would not be assented to by the Cape
Parliament, a deputation of the Yolks' Committee on July 4th,
1884, discu~sed the points referred to with Mr. MACKENZIE, ,",ho

(a) Blue-book [0. 4194], page 79.
(0) Rlue-book, [C. 4194:J, page 113.
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<:onfirmed what he had. previously stated regarding land titles and
the debt. Mr. VAN NIEXERK, however" declined to B"Ccept the
position offered to him and to take the oaih of allegiance, and
matters became ISO critical that Mr. MACKENZIE came to the
'Conclusion that a police force of two hundred men would be
necessary at once. He also made a request for the services of
~, the most Christian, broadest-minded, Dutch-speaking business
man as Assi:!tant Commiesioner and Lauddrost or Vryburg.'"
Sir H. ROBINSON now fairly lost patienee, and his replies to Mr.
MACKENZIE became more peremptory and marked with some
severity. On July 12th, 1884, His Excellency said: ,r I cannot
ask Her ~IaJesty'sGovernment to sanction any further expenditure
until 1 have received definite replies to the points referred to in my
telegrams of 6th;, 8th and 10th. I require to know the precise
position in Stel1&1an<1. Are they with us or against us, or
or neutral • • . • Her Majesty's Government have no
intention of fighting Stellalanders. If they had, a thousand
"men would not be filufficient. For what purpose, then, do you
require another 100 police? and where would you locate them P
The expenditure which you have already undertaken, irre­
spective of Stellaland, will not be Jess than .£40,000 for the
first year, and you have· said no word as yet about revenue.
If the present police were doubled, as you suggest, the expen­
diture for the first year 'Would not be far short of £80,000,
and to expect the Imperial Government to expend th!s merely
for the purpose of checkiog cattle stealing is simply prepos­
terous. All MA.NKOROANE'S and MONTSIO.A.'S cattle a1'e
not worth one year's proposed expenditure." The rebuke
was very severe, but Mr. l:fACKENzIE may derive some
balm to his wounded feelings from contemplating the
lavish war expenditure now being incurred, of which one
year's interest alone will probably far exceed the total cost of his
proposed police force. Resolutions submitted by the Colonial
Ministry in favour of negotia.ting with Her l\fajesty's Imperial
Government with a view of annexing Bechuanaland to the Cape
Colony having passed both branches of the Legislature a tempt­
ing opportunity presented itself of evading the paltry money
question and attempting to throw upon the Cape Colony the
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onus of dealing with the debt in connection with annexation.
That opportunity was greedily seized by Her Majesty's Imperial
Government, and accordingly Sir H. ROBINSON-actingJ 01
course, on instruc~~n.8-in announcing on tbe 19th July, 1884,.
to Mr. MAOKENZIE the passage of the resolution proposed by
the Cape Ministry-added that" you will of course take care
that during transitional stage any expenditure on Stellaland is met
by itself. Under altered circumstances neither aCJsets nor liabili­
ties Deed be taken over byImperial Government" (a). The feeling.
which dictated so unworthy an attempt on the pad of HeJ:
Majesty's Imperial Government cannot but be resented by
Colonists of every nationality and disapproved of everywhere.
M1'. MAOKENZIE in answer to that portion of the telegram 01
Sir H. ROBINSON which relates to current expenditure replied
that he could not shirk money responsibilites even for a time, and,
stated that he thought of "continuing the issue of Stellaland
, good-fors ' for current expenses of Government he~'e, endorsing'
them myself while here." On July 25th, 1884, Sir II. ROBINSON
declined without the express authority of Her Majesty's Govern­
ment to "sanction the payment from Imperial funds of outstand­
ing obligations of Stellaland Republic or of the 'good-fors'
which you propose issuing for current expenses of Government
• • • • I do not think Her Majesty's Government will ap­
prove the promise you have made." Mr. MAOKENZIE continued
to contend against the proposed repudintion and wrote to Sir H ..
ROBINSON on August 1st, 1884, as follows :_U It was of the'
very essence of the settlement which I have be'en 6ndeavouring
to carry tbrough here .that Her Majesty's Government should
take up the pecuniary responsibilities of those wRom we BUC­

ceeded. Either drive them out, or take over public affilirs from
their hands-these were our alternatives. 'Ihe latter was chosen
and I think very wisely." Notwithstanding all that was urged
HerMajesty's Imperial Govemment adhered to the position taken
up by them, and, consequently, much Imperial Government
paper in the shape of dishonoured "good-forB" countersigned
by :Mr. MAOKENZIE and issued in payment of the current ex-

(tI) Blue-book [0.4194:], page 127,
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pCDses of Government under him can now be obtained in
Stellaland by speculative persons a~ any price they may
wish to offer. During the month of July, 1884, difficulties
incrEased in Stellaland. The Yolks' Committee e.ccording to
Mr. MACKENZIE'S letter of Augllst 1st, 1884, deposed Mr.
VAN NIEKERK from office and Mr. VAN NIEXERK and hig
1'"nrty deposed the" Yolks' Committee. Mr. MACKENZIE called
II public meeting at Vryburg on July 21st, 1883, at which he
gave Mr. VAN NIEKERK an intimation to attend. Mr. VAN
NlEKERK, who undoubtedly represented the great majority of
the inhabit:ints, decliaed to attend, and thereupun Mr.
MACKENZIE ullwisely identified himself with the other party and
either carri~d away by an ill-founded belief of the strength of his
supporters or thinking that something decisive should be done
he actually hoisted the British flag. The hopes of the patty
which egged "Afr. MACKENZIE on to this step now rose high.
A Select Committee elected by the Yolks' Committee acted 98

his advisers, for which sarvice it was arranged that the member;5
should he " paid for such days as they sit for the tranl!action
of public business," and police and other appointments
were eaged)" sought for. The act of hoisting the British flag
was certain to be looked upon as injudicious by Sir H. ROBINSON,
from whom indeed a telegraphio message t·) Mr. MACKENZIE
on the subject appears to have been in transit at the time. In
th"tt message His Excellency said :'-" Touching what you Bay
in YO\u' note of the 22nd just received as to hoisting ED~lisb flag
at some future time, I think it right to ,yarn you that )"OU would
not be warranted in takillg such a step. Hoisting the British
flag is technically the symbol of the assumption ot' sovereignty.
Bechuanaland is only a native territory under a British Protec­
torate, and you are not ju~tified in altering the status without
the express sanction of Her Majesty's Government." On the
previous day, July 29th, 1884, Sir H. ROBINSO~ had received
information from Mr. RHODES of a" row at Vryburg on attempt
to hoist Blitish flag" which probably alarmed His Excellency and,
when added to the effect of Mr. MACKENZIE having idp.ntified
himself with the party opposed to Mr. '\t?AN NII~KERK as well as
to other subjeots of disagreement such as the" good-for" ques-

F



tion, the proposed "preposterous" expenditure upon police,.
and the establishment of a native force without authority to do so~

led to such loss of confidence in Mr. MACKENZIE as to CllU&e the
despatch of the following strong telegram to him :-" Nothing
eould justify you in taking on yourself the re3ponsibility of in­
volving us in It conflict betwel;)n the two parties.. The conse­
quences would be disastrous tht'oughout South Africa. I find
it so difficult to underatand pre~ise position that I wish you to
come down here at once to confer with me ab out it as you pro­
llosed a short time ago. I halte asked Mr. RH ODES to proceed
from Kimberley to Vryburg as he is authorized to act as Deputy
Commissioner in your absence."· The facts recorded
above show that Mr. GLADSTONE was under a misapprehension
when he recently st<\ted in the House of Commolls that Mr.
:MACKENZIE had b£;en recalled solely because the Cape Ministry
askedfor it. The Eight Honourable Gentleman, if he had known
the facts, would then have said that Mr. MACKENZIE wa~ recalled
not because of any advice given by the Colonial Ministry but
1iecau~e Sir H. ROBINSUN distrusted him. It must not be
thought, however, that the Cape Ministry of wbich ~Ir.

UPINGTON was then thehead were anxious for .M::r. MACKENZIE'5

retention in Bechuanaland, on the contrary they were
desirous to see Mr. :MACKENZIE replac ed by a Colonial
officer possessing the confidence of the people, and in a Minute
to Sir H. ROBINSON, dated July 26th, 1884, they expressed
the opinion, in connection with the terms under which they
proposed to submit the question of annexation for the con­
sideration of t.he Cape Parliament, that" 1\h·. MACKENZIE,

Deputy Commissioner in Bechuanaland, does not command th~

t10nfidence of 0. large and influential portion. of the population,
and bis retention in office is not" calculated to promote the interests
or peace." That opinion was not acted upon. In fact the pro­
posed terms of annexation were looked upon with di~favour, and
the advice of the Cape Ministry in relation to Bechuanaland \VRa

declined ualess liability for a share in unlimited expenditure in
that country was admitted.. Subsequently, on J uly 30th~ 1884,
the Cape Ministry-who'were still not l"espoD!ible in Bechuana­
land matters for advice as a Ministry-again urged. in a Minute
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to Sir H. ROBINSON" that in their opinion the most serious if
n.ot the only obstacle to the rntlintenance of peace in the Pro­
tectorate is the continuance in the office of Deputy Commissioner
of !Ir. ~1ACKENZIE,who is not only an unpopular bllt an injudi­
cious officer'" Before its receipt Sir H. ROBINSON had­
as already pointed out-formed his own opinion of :Mr.
]).IACKENZIE"S capabilities and had despatched fa telegram
recalling him. This is shown ~y His Excellency's reIlly
to the latter lHnute of the Cape Ministry in which he begged" to
inform Ministers that prio7' to the receipt tif tlle Minute
lie had telegraplted to Mr. Mackenzie directing him to come
to Cape Town to c~nfer with lt~m as to the position in
Bcchuanaland." lir. RHODES was re&.1ly the adviser of Sir II...
u'OBINSON in this matter, Captain BOWER havillg telegraphed
to him on July 29th, 1884:, after receipt of the telegr'lrn fl'oul'
~Ir. RHODES giving news of the" row" at Vryburg (a) :-" Do
)~OU think MACKENZIE may be safely left in Stellaland ?" to
which Mr. RHODES loeplied on July 30th-t~1P. date of the­
me!:tsage recalling Mr. MACKENZIE-" Consider J\1!ACKENZIE's.

presence at Vryburg likely to cause disturbance. lIe is oppos4;!d
by large party."

The Cape Ministry although anxious for ]),11'. ltL.\CKENZIE'S

recall were thus in no way respomlible for it. 1\11'. l\1.A.CI(E~ZIE'S

recall was quickly followed by his resignation. UIWQ which Her
1\Iajesty's Imperial Govclonment showed theIr appreciation of his
services by granting him three months' salaloy a~ a- gratuitJ.
On 1\11'. RHODES'S arrival in Stenaland he at once saw the true­
state of affairs. He reported to Sir H. ROBIKSON that ., the­
town section accepted MACKENZIE but NIEKERK bas a large
majority with him and has proclaimed a separate Govelonment
at Harts River. • • • I am not without hope, but will have­
to: go on entirely different lines to 'hIACKENZIE." III his
telegl'am to Sir H. ROBINSON, dated August 7th, 1884, l\Ir.
RnoDEs observed :-" ~Iy policy, if it can be called one, i:f con­
tained in a few words, viz., to try and effect a loccollcilia1ion
with the NIEKERK party and obtain their co..operation in dealing

F2
(II) Blue-book [C. 4194], page 15.
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.ith the people at Raoi Groud or at Ie 1St their neutrality.
I know .exactly the object I am working for, to st'1P if
pDssible a. collision between our police and the Boers and ploe­
"tent a general war, which must necessitate Britidh troops and the
r.evival in an intensified form of the old race feelings which I am
~till in hopes are graaually dying out.'" Sagacity, patience, and
a disposition to conciliate on the part of the Deputy Commis­
2ioner were now requisite in Rechuanalando Much has been
.made or the so-called U invasion" of t.he Protectorate by the
Roode Grond people in retaliating upon MONTSIOA for the out­
rage committed by his people in May, but if ever there was a
state or war it existed in StelIaland after the establishment of
tfte Protectorate during the months of July, August, and ealoly
days of Septembp.r, 1884. A large meeting was held on July
30th, 1884, at which it was declared that without consent of
the burghers no one had a. right to hand over the country, that
the people would U only adhere to their Memonal for annexa­
lion to the Cape Colony, "and that they would U never subject
themselves to the Rev. JOlIN MACKENZIE." It was also
:resolved that a" Court of Military Officers" be established and
th".lt steps be taken "to prosecute before the aforesaid Court
for high treason every inhabitant of Stellaland who shall
associate himself with Mr. MACKENZIE in our political affairs,
.and deal with l:J.im according to Jaw." The hostility shown to
the Queen's ° representative at Roode Grond wns not greater
than this. A notice, dated July 31st, 1884, was issued by the
G(rn~rnment of the Republic of Stellaland summoning all land­
t>wners to an armed meeting at Losasa, the farm of Mr. P.
TA.N VREEDEN, Senior, for purpose of recovering all stolen
eattle from MANKOROANE, or, as sail by lIre RHODES, for tIle
purpose of " restoring their original Government, occupying Vry­
Img, and marching on Taung, to recover the stolen cattle," and
a warning was given that persons who did Dot comply with the
motice would" have their ground confisqated." WI at a "fools'
Jaradise" Mr. MACKENZIE was living in \Then he penned the
e1espateh to Sir II. ROBINSON, dated the day after the above
:aotice was issued, in which he congloatulated himself on "the
:JesuIt of patient contact with the people," and said that tbe
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people some time ago" were stimulated in their Memonal to the
Cape Colony by the fear of the Imperial Government, they now
openly and collectively express the desire to be under that
Government • • • • As they hoisted the :flag amid hearty
cheers, I thought here is the answer to all the unjust and silly
remarks which have been recently made in Cape Town about
, eliminating • the Imperia.l factor from Bechuanaland, and espe­
cially concerningmyself as a breeder of strife." Mr. MA.OKENZIE
put forth" the tender leaves of hope" on the 28tb, on the 29th
he bore "his blushing honours thick upon him" as the British
:Bag waved proudly over him and the prayer "offered by
one of themselves in Dutch "was stilll'inging in hi~ ealOS, bllt on
the 30th comes" the killing frost" of Sir H. UOBINSON'S telegl'arn
ofrecaU. .

" And-when he thinks, good easy man, full surely
His greatness is a ripening-nips his root
And then he falls.

There was good ground for ?tir. RHODES'S statement to Sir It.
ROBINSON in his telegram of August 7th, 1884, that" the whole
Bechuana question look:! serious, " a.nd he rightly observed that
MANKOROANE'S object was to bring about a collision so that with
the aSJi~tance of the British Government he might regain posses·
sion of Stenaland. MONTSIOA.'S object in May was preci~ely the
S3me. Mr. RHODEs-evidently "s a protection to his reputation
-now asked for the assistance of Captain BOWER, the Imperia.
Secretary, and peace was secured pending annexation to th.~

Cni)c Colo11Y by the joint efforts of these gentlemen, who
according to some adopted a just and conciliatory policy
but who according to others succeeded by conceding every..
thing to armed rebels and freebooters. Their position was
one of great difficulty. Captain BOWER telegraphed to Si~

H. ROBINSON on August 27th, 1884, that "'" Mr.. BHODE~

did not overstate the case when he reported that the &or.s l\\'-ere­
l·abid. There are about 300 or 400 men here now, and a Ila.r,~

seotion of them are very unreasonable and violent, their object
being war at any prict:." At this time l\lr. RHODES :w.as at
Roode Grond, and" in his absence, Captain BOWER-who ap!pe&ri
to have been in some personal dangfr-offered, as representiilg
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Iter Majesty'! Imperial Government, terms which embraced the
repudiation (}f all Mr. MACK~NZIE'S acts. the recognition -of all
land titles issued by. the Ste;,llaland Government ana continuance
of 1he Stenaland Goyernment pending annexation to the Cape
Colony subject to the Impel'ial Protectorate." The offer fC",

mailled in suspense till 'the arl'IvaI of }Iessrs. RUODES "'and
JOUBEUT, when after three days' discussion an a.greement was
arriv.cd at on September 8th" 1884" and the armed men forming
cne of the contracting bodies dispersed. Those who speak of
l\~oNTsIOA'Stl.·eatywith MosnETTEin 1882ashavingbeenforced
ii'oIU him with" the pistol at his head" will do well to bear in mind
the circumstances under which the agreement of Septereber 8th,
IB84, was signed (a). Captain BOWER-whoseems to "have been
great embarrassed by" the fact tha~ the British flag was flying
at Vrybul'g-magnanimously accepted joint responsibility with
Mr. RHODES for the agreement and pointed out in his report to Sil­
II. Robinson, da.ted 18th September, 1884 (b), that through his
foresightina.rl'anging amongst other things "for the abandonment
-of Vryburg" where the British flag ha.d been raised, the imme­
diate consequences" of the rejection of the term~ would not have
been in a military sense disastrous.:' Persons not belonging to
either Her Majesty'tJ land or sea forces might possibly say that
there might be di:!aster otherwise than ill a military sense.
It was clearly seen by Mr. RHODES that the wisest course would
be to meet the people half way a)though they were freebooters
and in rebellion, accordingtn Captain BOWER'S telegrams, and to
accede to their demands. Events have shown that it
would have been equally wise to have adopted the same course
in Land Goshen. The agreement of September 8th, 1884, pro...
vided inter ~lia,:first, for the cancellation of all Mr. MACKENZIE'S
actd with the Volks' 90mmittee and of all his proclamatio3s ;
secondly, for the continuance of the ~tenaland Government
pending annexation to the Cape Colony, recognizing, however,
Her Majesty's }>rotectorate after the period of three months and
subject to the condition that all Executive acts must be taken
with the consent of the Commissioner of Bechuallalsnd; thirdly,

(a) Blue-book [C. 4213], page 81.

eb) Ibid, page 129.
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for the recognition of all titles to land issued by the Government
()f Stellaland; and fourthly, for the appointment of Commie­
sio!1ere for certain purposet:1. The people of Stellaland having
practic-nlly had indepen deDce conceded to them pending annexa­
tion to the Cape Colony quietly. awaited the meeting of the
Colonial Parliament. They continued to be governed by Mr.
VA.N NIEKERK'S administration without the shadow of any con­
trol by Her Majesty's Imperial Government.

VI.

SUCH was the condition of Stellaland and Land Goshen re­
spectively when the Cape Ministers,. :aIr. UPINGTON and Mr.
SPRIGG, proceeded in November, 1884, to Beclluanaland for the
purpose of endeavouring to bring about, with the const'nt of all
concerned, annexation to the Cape Colony, and, thel eby, first,
to satisfy the wishes of Her Majesty's Imperial Government, who
were desirous for annexation, and, secondly, to secure the trade
rou~e to the intel."ior on that side of the continent. In the
Batlaping country they found the natives on the look out for
~ome opportunity to regain what they had lost. :News of the
likelihood of troops al'riving from England had unsettled them
notwithstltnding the fact that Mr. RHODES had impresl:5ed upon
MANKOROANE that there was no hope of his getting back any
of the country which he had lost. From the Batlapings, how­
-ever, no real danger was or is to be apprehended. They
are a wretched l'ace, bound to deteriorate even further.
In Stellaland it was found that the people were everywhere
in favour of the annexation of the territory to the Cape Colony.
i\lany perdolls stated that they wouldbave preferred to be subjects
of th«a Transvaal Government, but seeing that such a course was
out of the question they ",el"e ready to come under the Queen
in her Colonial Government. The suggestion of direct Imperial
rule over the country as a Crown Colony was received with
dismay, R.nd it is clear that 110 such syst£m of government can
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ever work satisCactorily in Stellaland. Disturbances must be
the result. On arrival in Land Goshen the Cape MiniRters
found p.xactly the same condition of things to be in existence as
in Stellaland. There was not a semblance of a Protectorate or
of Imperial authority. The Ba.rolong tribe were occupying a
certain portion of the country, and they were in friendly inter­
course with the Europeans who occupied portions of tho residue

In the same way as in Stellaland there was a Government
establi:!hed under Mr. N. C. GEY VAN PITTIUS as Adminis­
trator or Chairman of the Bestuur, dwellings were being built
at Roode Grond and elsewhere, and several farmers were-as
stated by Captain BOWER in speaking of Stellaland-gradually
developing the resources of the country." Although no croquet
ground was visible the Imperial Secretary might have noticed
"weIl.dressed young ladies" and" heard the sound of a piano.''''
It has been inconsiderately said that the Cape Ministers should
not either personally or by agency have had any communication
with people like the inhabitants of Land Goshen. It would!
appear to be sufficient answer, at all eYents in moments of
calmness, to point out that when it ill proposed to effect an
object by means of amicable settlement thert' must be communi­
cation with those with whom it is proposed to enter into arrange­
ments. That was undoubteaIy the view taken by Her Majest.y'&
Imperial Govemment when they authorized Captain BOWER, the
Imperial Secretary, to offer favourable ternis to the Stellaland
burghers, who-on Captain BOWER'S own admission-threatened
his life and who were ready to march upon the seat of Govern­
ment of the Protectorate. The Cape Ministers had no such,
compulsion exercised upon them. Not only were they received
with the greatest respect by the Bestuur and people of Land
Goshen but they were enabled to dictate their own terms-as·
they always intended to do-and they would not have tolerated
the presence of armed men at the signature of theil' conditions..
But, further, the people found in Land Goshen were far from
being ·n murderers and thieves" as described by fiery orators
wholly ignorant of the character of the people and the circum­
stances of the country. So far back as June 14th, 1884, as
stated by Mr. MACKENZIE'S anonymous cOI'respondent already
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quoted from (a), "many of the original" Vrijwilligers" (Volun­
teers) had sold their fal"Ills," and such ofthem as continued to reside
in the country were men against whose reputation nothing could
be said except that they had taken service as mercenary soldiers.
The purchasers of land from snch of the volunteers as have dis­
posed of their rights are men who would make excellent settlers•.
The number of people then resident in Land Goshen was not
and is not now great, the farms distributed amongst the volunteers
by lottery not having been generally occupied in consequence or
the disturbed state of Bechuanaland. The case of Stellaland was
and is entirely parallel, the ftirms drawn by the volunteers in the
Stellaland Lottery not being even yet fully occupied notwith­
standing that personal occupation ii required by the agreements..
Under the conditions imposed upon them by HeI Majesty's
Impenal Government it was necessary for the Cape .Ministers tOt
secure to the Barolong tribe the land of which they \Vere in the
undisturbed possession in May last, when the British Protectorate
was established according to Sir H. ROBIN SON'S definition of"
MONTBIOA'S location, or to secure to MONTSIOA and his tribe­
ample garden and grazing ground as \uore correctly required by
Lord DERBY, and accordingly they first proceeded to inform
themselves upon this subject, with the result that the n:ltives­
were fouud to have been hemmed "in at the time of the establish­
ment cf the Pl'otectorate and to have been actually in the undis­
turbed possession of nothing south of the Molopo River. The
Cape Ministers were, however, desirous to secure ample lanu fo1"'
the tribe as required by Lord DERBY, a~d they determined not
to udhere to the st.rict letter of the definition of Hir H. ROBINSOS,.

but rather to follow what they knew to be its spirit, and
to insist on ~fONTSIO.A'S people getting much more tha.n
the strict letter of that definition would give them. With
that object in view the Cape Ministers inquired closely
into the extent of the population and into the pursuits or
the people. They found the people to be far leds numerous:­
than has been Ftated in officialloeports. Captain HA.RREL fixed
the number of MONTSIOA.'S people in 1880 at 12,500, of whom

(a) Blue-book [0.4194:], page 63.
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2,500 were al1ult males. As the natives i.ave no kn'iwledge or
number$ any es~imat~ of population basea upon statements of
numbsr3 made by them mu~t be conjectural, and it is clear that
Captain HARREL'S estimate was too high. Careful inquiry led the
Cape Ministers to conclude that the total population, including
the slaves of the tribe, would be highly estimated at 4,000.
Intermixture of GASSITSIWE'S people with "MONTSIO~'S,when
fJr the purpose of grazing ~their herds they.l1&.tI;le togethel', may
sometimes cau~e a false estimate to be made of the number of
MONTSIOA'S people. They are slave-holding pastoral natives,
of no high type, owning large 11erds of cattle but doing next
to nothing in the way of cultivating the soil. If the
Barolong terribloy is left in their hands it will not pay a
tithe of the cost of government. The only people who
really can make anything of the country for many years
to come aLoe Colonial pioneer f,lrmers such as those now begin-.
ning to locate themselves in Stellaland, who will b~ willing to gra­
duan! develop so remote a country and be content with small
pecuniary returns tVhile undergoing great privations. The find­
ing of water by borin~ would probably make a great change in
the countr.r, but the distance from a central market will long be
a drawback. Emancipation of the Vaal-pens slaves of the Baro­
long tribe-which of COl1r~e IJlust now take place-will probably
be very distasteful to that tribe, and it ought to be clearly under­
stood tlHt the emancipation is intended to be effective. It it
should be a mere paper emancipation, and if no person is appointed
to lool{ after the serfl::1, and if no means of living is provided for
them, they they are certain to continue in serfdom. Portion of
the land now occupiod by l\IONTSIOA should be taken from him
and given to the emancipated slayed. It 'Would be interesting to
know whether Her Maj esty's Imperial Government was aware of
the continuance of sIa,"ery under the Queen's Protectorate in
Oechuanaland. In the eettlement of the di$})uted land question
l\10NTSIO.A was, of course, entitled to be first heard, but, on
sending for him, he was Eaid to be visiting his cattle posts,
although his exact whereabouts WIlS unknown. Messengers
were ~aid hy his people to have been despatched for the purpose
of recalling 111m, but that statem-ent was afterwards found to be
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untrue. MONl'BIOA. not having appeared, the Cape Ministers,
frtm inquiry made amongst the chief men of the 13al'olOlJg
tribe and ()fherwi~eas well a8 from personal observation, came
to the conclusion that 'the natives would have land beyond
their re<jt:irements if they were secured in the possession
(If the garden and grazing grounds Itt MafFeking, Sehuba,
and Saliris Stations with ample grazing ground to the north ~f

the Molopo River, but lest MONTBIOA should not care to resume
occupa.tion of Saliris Station .or of his own former station at
Sebuba provision was made for granting him other land along
the Molopo River CIt elsewhel"~ as he might point out. It is now
clear that MONTBloA.like MANKOROAlSE had determined, -on
the ad'Vice of 'White men, to agree to nothing as soon &s he
}~eard that troops 'Were about to leave England. One of the
members of the Cape ~ini~try (Mr. UPINGTON) having
visited Gaesitsiwe at KaDye, for the purpose of entering into
treaty arrangEments with that Chief baving for their object the
mainteJ: once cf an open trade route and secul'ing a right of
cespi(n of Ilovereignty to Her Majesty the Queen
pri(lr to tha.t of any olher Power, found MONTSIOA.
staying at that station. In a conference with the chief (a) he

1\'as informed by the Minister who addressed him that the Cape
Ministry t( 8re only too anxious to give him good terms if he will
only m( et us. Our pI'esent proposal is to l"einstate him in posses­
sicn of the land at Sehubn, 1\laffeking and Saliris with ample
grazing ground on the north bank of the l"iver~ That is far more
than he was in the undisturbed possession of when the British
Pl'otectorate was established, and I canno~ help thinking it is an
excellent settlement for him." In answer to that statement all
Eurol ean gentleman, who, with another, had been admitted to
tl~e conference as the Chiers advisers at the request of MONTSIOA.,
Faid c: I should think so. 'Vould he be a British ~ubjectpI' The
reply was as follows :_(C Yes 1 'Ve desire to give him all the
bnd he may reasonably require, and Mr. SPRIGG is at present
at Maffeking awaiting MONTSIOA to go into matters with him~

and he will be greatly disappointed at his not being there."

ea) Notes of an interview with G.A.SSITSIWE and MONTSIOA.. Appl'ndix.
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Whereupon the same gentleman who had previously spoken on
behalf of MONTSIOA. said" He has been sent away." At a sub­
sequent part of the conversation Mr. UPINGTON said:­
" MONTSIOA. apparently positively refuses to take any part in •
settlement until armed men are placed in his country. If he­
thinks that he will obtain the assistance of British troops under
such circumstances I must tell him that in my opinion he is much
mistaken. The British public will not favour a man who refuses­
to discuss a fair settlement • • • • • Tell MONTSIOA. that
Dotes are being taken of all that is DOW occurring, that every-·
thing will appear in official documents, and if he shows DO.

inclination to meet me I am inclined to think that not a soldier
will come here and the British public will view his conduct
with great dissatisfaction. I have come to this remote country,.
at great personal inconvenience, to do my best for him, a.nd I want
him to come down to his own station, and in the presence of"
his own people to show me what land he requires. • • • •
Finally, I wish it to be conveyed to MONTSIOA. that I have
come to his country to get as 'muob land S:s possible for him..
I have succeeded in getting back for him far more land than
was given to him by his own solemn treaty. White :people
regard their treaty arrangements, and strictly speaking MONT­
SIOA. might be bound by his.. Certainl.y MO:NTSIOA. has not
strengthened his case by not meeting me fairly with regard t()
this matter. A meetiDg of the Goshenites has been called
for the 28th instant, and I wiilhed him to come face to face with
them, to speak out his mind openly, and to tell me what h3
wanted, as I wished to make a good settlement for him. It is
for him now to say whether he will be present 01' whether he
will not. I shall then be in a p)sition to say where his beacons
will be placed, so that the good intentions of the Queen in hi ~
favour may be carried out. After that I hope he will keep
hh people from st~aling and see that they maintain peac e.
A Government offi)er will bs appointed to whom he can
alwalif apply whenever he wants redress for any wrong
done to him and for advicd whel he is in any difficulty.
As soon as we Cln ·make arrangemenh we shall also have a
police force to secure the k ~eping of the peace by every man
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whether white or black." At a later stage the following question
was put to MONTSIOA :-" :Now let us have a deci<led answer.
Let it be yes or no. Is MONTSIOA coming down to help us in
-effecting the settlement?" The reply was :-"If my wagon
oComfS I will try to come down.'· Thereupon the Cape Minister
said :-"MONTSIOA will understand that a meeting is to be held
-on Friday to discuss the arrangement as signed by the Deatuur
of Goshen. On Saturday I will be prepared to go over the
ground with MONTsIoA,getting him to show me what land will be
flU fficient for his people. If MONTSIOA. is sincere in wishing for a
·settlement he will be there on that day." Not\vithstanding his
promise MONTSIOA did not appear on the day named. There can
be noW' no doubt that certain white advisers-not being the
gentlemen present at Kanye-for their own purposes induced
him to avoid taking part in the settlement by buoying him
up 'With the hope that IIer Majesty's troops were marching
into the country with the object of placing him in the position
he occupied previously to the Treaty of October, 1882.
The Cape Ministers baving clearly laid down to the people
of Land Goshen that the direction of Her Majesty's
Imperial Government must be obeyed and having satisfied
themselves as to the land required by the natives, had then
to deal with the residue which, if there were no claim to it,
would become waste Crown lands upon annexation to the Cape
Colony. They proceeded, in effect, to demand their titles from
persons who m1de claim to that land. It was pointed out tha.t a
number of persons, about 140, claimed title under the treaty
entered into between MOSHETTE nnd MONTSIOA. on October
24th, 1882. The Cape Ministers having considered all the cir­
cumstanCe8 in connection with that treaty and having before
them the precedent of the treaty between "MASSOUW and MAN­
KOROANE and the complete acceptance of it by Her :Majesty'~

ImlJerial Government, could not honestly refuse to acknowledge
the validity of titles acquired under the treat,. between MOSHETTE
and MONTSIOA, and accordingly by this second condition they
agreed to respect It all rights to. land enjoyed by white settlers
under grant or transfor before the forunl establishment of the
British Protectorate • • • • in the same manner as arranged
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in Stellaland between Her Majesty's Deputy Comrnisshner- and
the inhabitants of tha.t territory." • The treatY' made in August,
1884, at the instance of Mr. J OUBEltT they declined to recognize
as B valid document. It had been ental'ed into when the country
was under British protection and was therefore null and void.
Mr. JOUBERT seems to have a.cted as mOOi sto.r simply foc the
purpose of saving MONTSIOA from annihilatioR,. and he appears
never- to have 'attached any value to the treaty. But although
the latter treaty was not recognized it appea.red that many
persons-in the main respectable farmers who had taken no
pnrt in the b.lstilities-bad put'chased f!lTm-S in the honest belief
that the vendors who acquired under the latter treaty had
a good title. For those people there was necessarily some
sympathy, a.nd, as they were as good settler~ as could be found,
the Cape Minhstry agreed to appoint a Commission to- investigate
their claims and make provision for them subject to the consent
of Parliament. The rest of the vacant country W8I3 to become
waste Crown lands. The debt question was left entirely open,
and pending the establishment of a fixed form of government it
was. provided-following the lines of the Stellala.nd settlement­
that a. Colonial Officer should administer the affairs of the Govern­
lnent in conjunction with the Bestuur, but no act shoulJ be valid
till approved by that officer. Could a fairer settlement have been
made? The natives obtainecl ample land, and as the Colony was
about to annex the territory the residue aftel~ providing for the
llatiyes ought to have been left to the disposal of the Colonial
Government responsible to"dJ e Colonial Parliament. Her Majesty's
Impelial Government, once the natives were provided for, ought
certainly Dot to have interfered with the actions of the Colonial
Government in dealing 'With the land in view "of annexation. If
the Colonial Govei'flment had disposed improperly of lands
wh=ch ilhould have become waste CrowD landi of the Colony
the Colonial Parliament would have censured them.. The
Colonial :l\Iinisters -endeavoul''6d with the good wishes of Her
l\Iajesty's Imperiai Government' to' effect jI, settlement, without
bloodshed, which would give ample· land to the natives and be
likely to relieve Her"Majesty's Goverllm-ent of re9poDf~ibilityby
securing annexation. In this they w~re successful notwithstand-
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ing great opposition from several persons including !\fr. GEY

VAN PITTIUS" who honestl)' expressed bis desil'e to be unde,' the
Transvaal Government. They Buceeeded in getting tTle people
of Land Goshen to agree to annex ltion to th'1 Colony on
terms which were lair to all parties. But what was the r\.'sult ?
Hesitation on the part of Her Majesty's Imperial Government
to assent to a settlement which would have l'elieved them of the
Protectorate while securing the cJuntry for e\"er to thA British
Crown. The Colonial Government would have been enabled
also by alliance3 with the Chiefti northward-for which all
rtlTangements had been made-to secure open trade routes to
the Z.ambesi and thereby to check any attempts b:r Foreign
Powera to block the l'oad to the interi ;r. The grave quc:.ltioDs
now are -why did not Her Majesty's Imperial Government
~bide by the nction of those most interested: the Colonia.l
Government? Why hars tl force been sfmt into a remote part o(
South Africa where no enemy is likely to be encountered, at a
probable expense of some millions? Is i~ for the purpose of
defeating the rights of a few white men and breaking the treaty
of October, 1882? What course does ller J\lajesi;y's Imperial
Government intend to pursue when Major-Gener..d Sir CIIARLES

'VARREN and hi~ troops have occupied the Land of
Goshen without opposition? If the object is to make
an armed demonstration in South Afden fOl" tIle purpose
of showing the gre:lt EUl'opp,an Powel n that England is
determined to uphold her position on this COl1linellt, the
policy is intelligible; but the responsible l\Iiniiitry of the
Colony wight fairly say that the object s~ould h'lve been
communicated to them so that they may be able tJ counteract
any false impressions created amongst the people fiS to the objt'ct
of that demonstration. But the object cannot pos~ibly have been
to have a military p3l'ade for the purpose above suggested.
'Vhat, theD" is it? Is it an armed demonstration against the
TrallSl"aal based upon any impression that the Transvaal Govern­
ment is determined to crush Brit-ish influence ill South Africf\ P
If so, IIer l\Iajesty's Imperial Government are ill-advised. The
Transvaal Goverument has more than enough to do to look after
its intemal affairs. If that Republic ever had any intention to
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block the trade of the Cape Colony that intention does not now
exist, and unless the effect of the military expedition under Sir
CHARLES 'VARREN should be to renew ill-feelinp; there is reason
to believe that confederation of the South Afdcan States
under the British :flag would not be distasteful to a large number
of the people of the Transvaal. If, however, the inhabitants
of the Relmblic are now dl'iven into the arms of Germany,
Englis'l statesmen, led away by heated speeches at political
meetings which do not represent true popular feeling, will have
themselves to thank for it. The truth seems to be th:lt
Her Majesty's Imperial Govel'nment have all thl"Ough this
unfortunate business not been well advised as to public feeling
in the Cape Colony. It would now appear that they were left
undE'r the false impression that the Cape Ministerial settlement
would not meet with the approval of the Colonial Legislature,
nnd that if it were disapproved by Her Majesty's Imperial
Go'Vernment annexation would still be safe. The settlement
proposed by the Cape Minist.ers has been opposed in the Cape
COlony mainly by two sections: drowning politicians opposed to
the Ministry who were only too desirous to grasp at any straw,
snll persons anxious in a time of mercantile depression for ex­
penditure on war who looked forward with avidity to the advent
of troops. The cry at the great majority of anti-Minis terial meet­
ings held, cRpccially in the Eastern Districts, ultimately became
one which lIer ~fajesty's Imperial Government would not have
cared to hear. It was" No annexation. Let the Imperial
troops come into Becbuanaland and remain thel"e." The
JesuIt of the joint action of the two classes mentioned was
much mob clamour, and Her Majesty's Imperial Government
Dppear-not for the fil"st time-to have mistaken the noise
of packed meetings for the popular voice of the Colony. The
leading speakers at those meetings were perSOll8 well-known
to be opposed in politics to the present Cape Ministry, which
alone ought to have induced Her Majesty's Imperial Govern­
ment to pause before alTiving at the conclusion tbat the
eettlement come to did not meet with the assent of the Colony.
The other influences referred to were in action also as WilS well
shown in the case of a leading politician and merchant in Port
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Elizabeth who having heatedly de"nouncea a1 a public meeting the
Ministerial settlement and called fur military force to maintaiIl
British honour roshed to Cape Town to endeavour to secure war
contracts. To such persons acceptance of the Cape Ministerial
settlement would have been a blow. Everything pJ8sibie was done
to prevent excitement from cooling down and to keep up feeling
in England. A telegram was despatched containing a perverte:l
report of a speech made by the Cape Premier at the conclu~iOlr

of the Cape Ministerial settlement. Words were imputed to Mr.
UPINGTON which were never used by him, but the mainten!1nee
of the war excitement was indispensable. Her Majesty's Imperial
Government ought certainly to have known that a public meet.
ing at Cape Town got up for the occasion or a public meeting at
Kimberley-at which many were likely to attend who knew
nothing of the Bechuanaland question-did not repres~nt the true
feeling of South African Colonists. Already the change in feeUn.g
amongst those who attended publicmeetings on this subject is very
great, but unfortunately for the British taxpayer his hard-earned.
money has either gone or is fast going. The objection taken by
a Bection of the public to the settlement arl'ived at by the C..ptt
Ministry was at first a general objection to the entire settlement..
but on calm consideration of the several clauses the objection!
finally resolved themselves in most cases into an objectioD tG the
constitution of tIle Land Commission. Some persons thought that
one of.the Commi-siollE'rS should have been a nureinee of the
Imperial Government. As the settlement was one affecting the
Cape Colony which was proposing to annex the country rather
than Her MajestY'1J Imperial Governmellt which was about teD
be l"elieved of it, it is difficult to &ee what interest Her Majesty's
Govel"nment would havc in the few cases to be decided by the
Land Commission, anel in fact no objection has been taken by
that Government. In any case Mr. V.AN NIEKERK, as Adminis­
trator of Stellaland under the British Protectorate, recognizecl
as such by the Queen, was thoroughly suitable to the office ef
President of the Land Commission. He is moreo..·er ..
gentleman in eVel"Y way worthy of confidence as will be
borne out by Mr. RHODES, Her }\Iajesty's Deputy Com­
missioner, and not only has he received the thanks of

G
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I~ord DERBY for his efforts in the cause of law and order in
Stellaland but durin~ the negotiations carried on by the Imperial
Secreta~y with the burghel"s in August, 1884. he gave valuable
aid to tha~ officer and. to use Captain BOWER'S words, worked
"very earnestly for a peaceful settlement." The appointment
c.f President of the Land Commission was forced by· the Cape
Ministers upon Mr. VAN NIEKERK, who mOl'e than once asked
to be rclievfd on the ground that his business arrangements would
be interfered with by the performance of his duty as Land Com­
missioner in Land Goshen. The Cape l\1inisters, having acquired

-'much confidence. in Mr. VAN NIEKEBK from the loyal aid given
by Mm in the efforts which were being made to bring Land
Goshen under the British Crown as part of the Colony, and
knowing how well acquainted Mr. VAN NIEKERK was with the

-subject, urged upon him so strongly to accept the appointment
that he finally consented. If Her Majesty's Imperia.l Govern­
ment had the slightest objection to' the proposed Land Com­
mission a re-an'angement could l'eadily have been made.
No such objection has ever been taken. In fact Her
Majesty's ImperiRl Government have shown that they arc
wining that the disposal of the surplus land after pl'oviding
for MONTSIOA'S people should be reserved for the consideration
of the Colonial ParJiament, a course which, under any circum­
sf ances, was rendered necess~ry by the Cape Ministerial settle­
ment having been made subject to the approval of the Cape
Parliament. The desire of Her Majp.sty's Imperial Government
"that Major-General Sir CHARLES WARREN-in whose judgment
the Colonial Ministry have gl'eat confidence-should act as Her
l\Iajesty's Representative in Bechuanaland pending the establIsh­
ment of a definite form of government there would also have
been readily acceded to by the Cape Ministry. Consequently,
the only points upon which tbere could possibly be any issu~

between the Imperial and Colonial Governments art', first, the
nmount of land to be given to the Barolong tribe, and, secondly,
the validity of the treaty of October 24th, 1882. The first of
these points may be at once disposed of. The Cape Ministry
were just as desirous as the Imperial Government to deal
generously with l\IoNTsIoA, and if tha.t C,hief-acting- under
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bad advice-had not kept aloof and if he had shown any
;re£lson why lle should have hac} more land than that allotted
to him,. his desires would have been gladly acceded to;
but it must be clear to everyone that the interests of
the Cape Colony-which wall about to undertake by annexa­
tion tli s'erions pecuniary burden-must be carefully guarded,
and that a small tribe of nativES could not be allowed unneces­
sarily to occupy land of no value to them. The only way in
which the Barolong couniry can ever be developed or reudered
useful to any GoV'ernment will be by the introduction of white
settlers, and if the natives are now to be allowed to re-occupy
more country than they require, to acquire control over the
waterit which is very scarce, and tQ oust white men from everything
but dry farms, the country will not be worth governing and no
Colonial Ministry can advise the Cape Legislature to a:gree
10 annexation under such circumstances. While holding these
views the Cape Ministry have alwaya desired that ample
land should be provided for the Bustenance of the natives,
so that practically there is entire agreement upon this
fubject.. The only question,. therefore, upon which there
seems to be any confli.et of opinion between Her
~Iajesty's Imperial Government a~d the Cape Ministry is
with regard to the validity of the treaty of October 24th, 1882,
and flurely the British public could not have any knowledge of
the true stt;Lte of affairs when they agreed to send an expensive
military force to Land Goshen through an arid countl'y-where
in time of drought it is difficult to travel-for the purpose of en­
forcing the cancellation of that treaty. The issue involves the
disposal of 140 farms of which the quitrent, at the usual rate in
that country £1 lOs. per annum, would be £210 a year! It was
fairly said on a recent occasion. by a wl-iter in the Pall Mall
t;Jazette that the honour of the British flag is not to be estimated
'by the price of the bunting, but is it not somewhat ludicrous to
speak of the honour to the British flag being affected by the di!­
posal of' 140 farms to mercenaries under a treaty between nat.ive
Chiefs? Surely the British public must see that it would have
been better to have left this wretched business in the hands of
the Colonial Government, who would have secured the natives in

G2
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possession of sufficient land and then by annexation have relieve<l
the British taxpayer ofgreat and unnecessary expense., introduced
good government, and kept open the trade routes to the interior.
What will be the result of tho Bechuanaland Expedition and
what are likely to be the consequences of what is now being
done are questions which will present themselves to the minds of
many people. Major-General Sir CHA.RLES W A.RREN ha ving
wisely given notice to the people of StellaJand that he has no
intention whatever of interfering with theilo rights under the
settlement effected with them he will be enabled to enter l,and
Goshen without firing a shot. On arriving in that country he will
fiud but a handful of men in occupltion of land, as in the disturbed
condition of the country there has not been any general occupation
by those to whom defined farms have been allotted. Most of those
who claim to be entitled to land now live elsewhere, some at great
distances. He will find possibly that somc of the white farmers
al'e men who hold titles acquired by lJona fide purchase from
volunteers who obtained grants under the treaty of October 24th,
]882. A deputation of orderly people will probably wait upon
him to urge the claims of white men to land. If he refuses to
acknowledge any claims and insists upon every white man
leaving the territory his order will be at once obeyed. He will
then replace MONTSIOA. in possession of the whole of his country
or some part thereof according to the view taken by him of what
the Barolong tribe were in the "undisturbed possession in May
last when t.he British Protectorate was formally established
or of what will give ample garden and grazing land to the tribe."
But, what next? If Sir CHA.RLEB WARREN'S settlement should
be the same as that of the Colonial Government, or if it should
differ only on matters which might otherwis.e have been amicably
arranged, the expenditure upon the Expedition will be wanton
waste. If, on the other hand, the settlement should differ much
from that of the Cape Ministry and if that Ministry should com­
mand a majority in Parliament and should in the discharge of their
duty to the Colony decline to propose anncxation, Her Majesty's
Imperial Government must be prepared to govern Bechuanaland
as a Crown Colony for the future. The questio"n may, therefore,
be again a~ked-would it perhaps not have been better to have
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"'Placed a little confidence in the Colonial Minidry, even although
it should be, as has been lately said in a leading English print, cr 0

Boer Ministry," and to have allowed the matter to be arranged b)
"annexation. According to the system of Constitutional Govern­
ment which the Cape Colony enjoys under a Sovereign-who
'Possesses no more loyal or true hearted subjects than the Dutch
Boers of that Colony-the opinions of even"a B06r Ministry" are
deserving ofsome weight as representing the views of the majority
Tin Parliament as well as of the greater portion of the population.
The steps taken by the Cape M.inistry towards effecting ann exa...
tion were dictated by a SinCel"e desire to aid Her Majesty's
Imperial Government. From a party point of view it would
-have been safer to have declined to propose annexation and to
;ilave allowed the affairs of the country to remainin thehands ofHer
Majesty's Imperial Government. Many of the supporters of the
Cape Ministr j in Parliament llesitated about incurring further
-responsibilities, and a certain section of the inhabitants of towns
-especially in the Eastern districts were and are altogether op-
posed to annexation and cherish the hope that Her Majesty'.
Imperial Government will be obliged to establish a Crown
Colony in Bechuanaland and to occupy the country wi th a large
force. At Graham's Town for instance a strong feeling was aroused
against the mission of the Cape Ministers to Bechuallaland on
the ground that it might lead to annexation instead of to the
establishment of direct Imperial control. There is much to be
'Said in fa.vour of that view. The maintenance of a strong adminis­
tration backed by a sufficient military force in ~orth Bechuana­
land, the annexation of or establishment of a Protectorate over
the country spreading northwa.rd towards the Zambesi including
L ,ke Ngami, Matabileland, and the country occupied by
GASSITSIWE, SEOHELE, KHAM:E, and other Chiefs, the appoint­
·ment of Residents with the Chiefs, and a general activity
in asserting British influence in that part of South Africa,
would be hailed with delight. Has the statesma.n yet
-arisen in England who will grapple with this question P
The expenditure would be heavy but the results would
be magnificent. The advance of Foreign Powers would be
checked, the natives '" ould be saved from encroachments, 8mI
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British trade would expand. It is' to be feared, however, that
there is little, if any, hope of such a proposal being carlied into
effect. If it were tried the British taxpayer would soon begin
to complain of the expense. 'Entering the region of practical
politics it will be abundantly clear that annexation to the Cape
Colony would have been the true solution of a difficult ques­
tion. Why then have Her Majesty's Imperial Government
done their utmost to slupwreck annexation by not following
the lines laid down by the Colonial Ministry P Why
have they placed that Ministry in such a position as
.~o necessitate either a breach of their settlement with the
people of Land Goshen or a reversal of the action of Sir
CHARLES W AHREN in case his settlement should differ from

·that of the Cape MinIsters P A material variance between Sir
CHARLES WARREN'S settlement and that made by the Cape
Ministers must necessarily lead to one of two things :-Refu:::al
on the part. of the Cape Parliament ~o annex, or, in case
annexation be proposed, abandonment by the Responsible
Ministers of the Crown in the Colony of their own settlement,
or the reversal by Parliament of that of Sir CHARLES WARREN.

In their dea'ing with the Cape Ministerial settlement there is
reason to apprehend that Her l\lajesty's Imperial Government
have once more misinterpreted public opinion in tha Cape
.Colouy. There is not the slightest fear of danger to British
<autllority arising from disloyalty amongst the Dutch popu­
lation within the Colony, or from aggression on the part
.of the Transvaal. President KRUGER has acted with
perfect fairness all through the negotiations carried on in
Bechuanaland by the Cape Ministers. At the request of
the Trans"Vaal Government Mr,. SCHOEMAN" one of the
Tl"ansvaal Native Cowmissioners, cordially aided the Cape
Ministers with his advice and the exercise of his influence,
and the conclusion must be arrived at by every person who
takes the trouble to inform himself upon the subject that neither
the people nor the Government of the Transvaal have any in­
tention to make aggressive encroachments on the Cape Colony
or to lower British influence in South Africa. Unfortunately
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there are some persons in South Africa who have a bitter hatred
of the Dutch and who are still anxious to see ,,,hat they describe
as " the stain of Amajuba" wiped out, and there is also a section
()f the Dutch whose antipathy to Englisl1men is equally bitter,
but the combined sections r~present only a small minority of
South African colonists who as a body sincerely desire
that the unhappy eve Its of the Transvaal war should he
forgotten and that persons of every nationality should
for the future live in harmony under the Great British
Empire. The reason for recently raising a cry of "British
influence in danger" is not apparent. Dutch and English
colonists ,~ere living fide by side on terms of friendly int~r­

course, the Africander Dond wa~ scarcely heard of, friendly
relations existed with the neighbouring States, and the Colony
was recovering from a period of depression. Politicians out of
place seem to have started the game, and once afoot many noisy
huntsmen were found to pursue it in expectation of a hunter's
ordina'l.°Y reward. The alleged atrocities in Land Goshen wore
eagerly seized upon as a means of striking at the Transyaal and
of getting Impelial troops into the country "to show the Dutch..
man what we can do." The Dutch population of South AfJica.
are perfectly well aware of the might of England. Moreover
tIley are not traitord to the Crown. In fact the only treason in the
Colony appeara to be to be "that ugly treason of mistrust" of
the Dutch population felt by 8l small minority. Her IVlajesty's
Imperial Government pla,-ed into the hands of this Doisy party,
believing, it would seem, that their utterances were
to be relied upon. IIave they even now realized how grossly
they have been deceived? If not, it may be worth t~e while of
Her 1\iajesty's Imperial Government to reflect whether it is not
just possible that the, Cape Colony may be as loyal as Lond1D
and to know that there is a large Engli..h party in the Colony
who sympathize with their Dutch neighboursJ who know their
worth and their loyalty, and who willingly act with them for the
common weal. Is it proposed to create a second Ireland in South
Africa and to range rival nationalities in h1stile camps? Ill­
advised speeches in the House of Commons, based upon ignorance,
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il!-advised ~peeches in the Colony, based upon prejudice or
'Unworthy' motives. ill-advised anti..colonial action on the
part of Her Majesty's Imperial Government, Buch as
-operated during the Basuto war, and general want of sympathy
'With the Colony would, if anything could, have long since
shattered tile loyalty of the Dutch of the Cape Colony,
tmt de~pite everything they have continued to hold as they do
to-day their allegiance to the Queen of England as something
'sacred~ It has been often petulantly said-what is it that Cape
Colonists require P What do they complain of? Tbey require
nothing from their heavily burdened mother country except her
sympathetic assistance in wha.t can alone be effected by her as
Lead' of the Empire. The vast majority of Cape Colonists look
"P0n the war expenditure now being incurred as simply plunder
of the British taxpayer, they feel that England is being wronged
'()Y' imposing such unnecessary expenditure upon her. They
fenr that everything will recoil upon tbe Colony, and that
England sick of money expenditure will become more and more
distrustful of everything South African and take less interest
in South African affairs than ever. They, thereupon, desire
it to be clearly understood that tbey have not sought for
war and that the expenditure has been incurred against
their wish and the wish of the Ministry of the Colony.
The ~ape Colony defends its extensive frontiers and it is
DO longer dependent upon Her Majesty's troops for aid. Cape
Colonists thoroughly realize the difficulties of the mother country
and so far from seeking to impose burthens upon her they would
focl to her standard for her defence at the slightest sound of
flange)". Their complaint 15 that but little sympathy is shown
tLem in their struggles to advance in a young country and that
when they ask, for example, for what of right was their
leritage, the preservation to them of a territory-without
ene farthing of expense to England-like Namaqualand and
Damaraland, where their interests were great, their fair
request was refused with coldness and the interests of a Foreign
Power f~voul"ed. The narrative of events in Bechuanaland
llOW' concluded contains dal"k chapters for which happily the
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Cape Colony is not responsible. If in commenting upon what
has occurred and is now occurring and if in drawing attention to
the weakness of the Colonial policy of Her Majesty's Imperial.
Gov~rnment it has been necessary to use strong terms, let this .be

excuse:-
". • • Be Kent unmannerly,

When Lear is mad."



APPENDIX A.

INTERVIEW AT TAUNGB, ON THE 11TH NOVEMBER, 1884, BETWEEN MESSBS.
UPINGTON AND SPRIGG AND MANKOROANE, SON OF MOULE. MAJOlt
STANLEY LoWE WAS PRESENT.

(INTERPRETER: MR. JOSBPH MCCARTHY.)

It appeared that Manlcoroane had not lu Ohief Councillors with him. It
IDal, lwwever, e:.cplained that tkOYJ in his company were men 'Who Hsually
oittmded him, o01&e being his Interpreter.

Mankoroooe.-Defore the Bloemhof Arbitration the line between myself
and th9 Boers f'xtencled from the Vaal River to &Illkwassa's Spruit. Since
then Colonel Moysey made the line .on the Hll1'ts River at Mamusa.. Since
that line I have no proper knowledge of where tlle line I'Uns at the present
moment. The line between myself and Montsi<JR Ilft( r leaving the Harts
River runs midway between the two saltpans, leaving one within my country.
The motJt northerly point was a bush called l\lohohochwo, thence along the
main road to Kunann, from thence to Setlag-ole, thence to Maseti, thence to
Kudonkgwe, thence to Genes1, thence to the Ii \'er called the Moshwlling
lower down, thence it takes that riveor down to a place called Chuha on the
borders of the Kaluhari Desert, thence to a place called Mudebing on 'the road
from Kuruman to Kheis on the Molopo Rh'er in the Kalahari Desert, from
MOOebing to a point on the east range of Langeberg close to GobntlJe where
Toto now lives-thence along the Lllngeberg to the OrtLngc3 River. All this
cONntry was subject to me and my father, and in the latter's time was occu­
pied by our people; but several tribes from time to time fled in there for
protection, and my father allowed them to remain. Had they, at the time,
assumed any rights 8S Chiara in his coun ry, he would have at once (hiven
them out. I was a youth of about 14 or thereabouts when these peoplA came
iuto my father's country. It was before circumcision. TIle descendants of
these people are the Batlaros and the Kunana Darolongs (under Moshette)
and t.he Maroquain Barolongs, who £or01el'ly were in my country, but who
have now gone over to Maroquain. The leRders or headmen of these tribes
are:-

(i.) At Kunana-l\tIoshette.
(ii.) At Maroquain-No man has been appointed since the death of

BODoquaae. .
(iii.) Of the Bntlaros-Toto and Bareki-Bllreki is the elder, but Toto iii

the headman.

The Kalahari DC'sll't to the westward .of the Langeberg was occupied b,
Bosjesmen and Korannn.s. To my knowledge there never were any of the
Bechuana tribe beyond the Langeberg. The Batlnros, wh.m they fled to our
country, came from Kheis and Lnhutoton~ in the des13rt. '1'he Barolongs fled
from the Mooi River where they had been under the Transvaal Boers, to
Thaba Nchu, and thence into my country.

The Barolong country now occupied by Montsion was the ori~inal Baro­
long country. The Barolongs were driven from it by Moselekatse, and th~y

took refuge at Thaba Nchu, whenQe they returned to their original country.
Montsioa's people never were under the Transvaal Boers. rl'lte Moselekatse
were eventually driven out of the original Baroloug count1Y by raids made
by a Koranna Chid named John Bloem, and afterwards we heard that tho
Boers had driven them further back. After these raids Blolm used to return
to hie own country near Barkly, and then the Barolongs re·occupied it.
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Massouw's Korannas were originally wanderers who shifted about from
one place to another, following the course of the Vaal River till they came
to Mamusa. My uncle Mahoura left Taungs and went to Mamusa imme­
diately after the Korannas occupied it. WhnreupOD they left and trekked
into tbe Transvaal to a place called Logaga. My uncle's cattle did not
thrive well at Mamusa so he returned to Taungs and when the country was
left unoccupied the Korannas returned to it. 'J~ey submitted to my uncle's
rule and he allowed them to remain.

A.ccording to our laws the country actually belongs to the tribe. No per­
son is entitled to any specific land. I have no right to alienate any portion
of the country. Our law is that where a person is given garden ground he is
allowed to remain there, but everything else belongs to the tribe generally.

According to our law there can be no absolute grants of land, but with the
consent of the people strangers might be al~owed to occupy land in our
country. As soon as that occupation ceases the land reverts to the tribe.
Once a stranger is allowed to occupy land his right is respected as if he were
a memb~r of the tribe. .

I will be very glad to have :Magistrates and pollee in my country when the
boundaries are properly settled, but at present I do not know what I have,
and until a settlement is arrived at I do not wifilh to say anything. I have
always wisbed to come under the Queen's Government, but at the present
moment I cannot understand how having asked the Queen's protection I have
not been treated well.

The Interpreter (McCarthy) explained that Mankoroane's main grievance
was the loss of the :ploughing lands between De Gaap and the Maroquane
range, running in a dIrect line from TsunA's to the latter range about 35 miles,
and extending westward into Stallaland about 25 miles.

APPENDIX B.

INTERVIEW, AT KUNANA, ON THE 16TH NOVEMBER. 1884, BETWEEN MESSRS.
UPINGTON AlfD SPRIGG, AND MOSHETTE AND HIS COUNCILLORS.

Premier.-Moshette, are you satisfied with the boundary line?
Mosketts.-No; it has not been pointed out tome. Mr. Mackenzie pointed

it out to me as going through my village, and I am dissatisfied becaufle that
is not the way for me to be treated. I should prefer that the whole of my
country was under one Go ,rernment. fhe only line I am satisfied with is
Colonell\Ioyse)"s line.

The fie"" line as declared by tM (onVfmtion of February, 1884, ""a' then
«eplained to Moskette by -'fr. Upington.

JloBhette.-ls it the way of the white people that because I am a Bechuana
I was not consulted ?

Premier.-I understood that you had given yourself over to the Transvaal,
who could speak for you?

Moshette.-Everyone who comes here gives me a different vel'8ion of
affairs. According to the Native law everybody interested must be con­
sulted. 1 think that a friend should always be consulted.

Mr. Upington UJplained the law, 0/ tke whites and the position 0/a 'fJ,bject
()/ the GO'Vernment.

Moihette -1 find that whites and Boers are aU alike and despise the black
man. The black men are only game. .

Premier.-Suppose you and I were settling the question to-day. What
line would )"ou like?
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MOBhette.-Colonel Yoysey's only. I was independent under my own
Government buli was friends to English and Boel'l!!. I have leen nothing
since but the white people running about my country.

Premi6l'.-The Queen's Gonrnment bas no desire to take one inch of your
country or to cause you any wrong whatever if you only live at peace and
keep your people from doing anything that is wrong.

MOBhette.- My p£:ople do nothing wrong that I know of. They wish for
nothing belon~ing to other part es. What makes my hoart sore is1ihe ignor­
ance in which I bave been kept of the arrangement s under the ConventioD.
I would have been satisfied had I been informed and consulted. I wish to be
independent of both Governments, but to be on fliendly terms.

Premier.-Yon need fear nO'hing of the Colonial Government as long as
your people behave themsches and keep witbin their boundary.

MOBhette.-I can guaruntee that none (,f my people will go overthe border
and rob beyond it. Mr. Warsing would know how I behaved.

Premier.-Would Moshette like to have a :Magistrate here?
MOBMtte.-No; I do not require any Governmeut officer here. I shou'd

like to be simply as I wag before. [ guarantee the conduct of my own people.
P,"emier.-Are you at peace with oM ontsie a ?
MoBhefts.-Yes!
Premier.-Wben did you make peace?
JVoBhette.-Last year. By that peace I got none of Montsioa.'s country.
Premier.-Are you satisfied with the boundary with Montsioa ?
MOBhette.-I should not like to answer that question except in the presence

of Montsioa. I am afraid to commit myself by saying what is untrne. I
cannot say that I shall be sat'sfied until I know wh at Montsioa wants. You
are not killing me alone but Montsioa also. I should like to return to the
position God gave me. I am the Chief of the Barolongs. Montsioa is my
younger brolher, but being my brother, and of my tril'e, I do not lIke him to
be dlstroyed. 'Ve are the SODS of one woman and of one mas. \Ve are one.

Premier.-How did the war first break out between you?
.J.lIoB'h.6tfe.,-One of my CouDcillors will speak.
Councillor Selika.-The first dispute we bad was wiLh regard to the country

Accordin~ to our laws we know of no division of territory. When the WR.
started, some of Machabi's people~ who lived at PolfontdD, shifted our
of the Transvaal into Rietfonteir£ in the country of tIle Baro]ongs, but .\:ontt
sioR. would not allow them to plough there.

:Moshette, in his capacity of Chief, as]~cd l\Iontsioa why he did so. l\Iontsioa.
said the cattle were destroying his corn. lUontsioa tried to dlive out Machabi's
peoplf'. l\foshetto objected. A meeting was held at J-. ietfonte-in. Moshct te,
)fontsioa, 1Ifachabi OLd .Makobi were present, and tl~ey had an arl-ume.t
and hot words. The words were between Montsioa and l\fachabi's people.
lIontEioa ordered Machabi's people to leaye Rietfontein and raturn to Pol­
fontein, lind they objected; subsequtntly Moshette sent Mont&ioa an ox in
considel'alion of bill allowing l\tlacbabi's people to remain ot Rietfontcin, and
begged of !Jim to have no war, but Montsioa was strongly ogainst Machabfs
people and' insisted on driving them out, and Moshettc sent me (Selika) to
try aRd prevent fighting. I went to Rietfontein and was also to go to
Montsioa's. While I was in Rietfontein, l\Iontsioa left lJis 0\\ n place with a
commando, and attacked us. Many of us were killed. They attacked us
when we were asleep, and drove us out. l\Ioshette then told Montsioa as he
hnd not listened to hil'ft-llIld bad insisteJ on fighting he llhould now fight
agaiost him. One of the reasons was that he had lost seven men in the
att2.ck on Rietfontein. Then l\loshet~e went against Montsion. That is the
origin of the war.

MOBhetfe.-I hRd no wbite men wIlen the War starti'd. The white people
joined me to get loot. 1'11e white mell offered their services; I did not cull
for them. I promised the first volunteers cRttle, they ha"ing asked for it.
YV ith regard to any subsequent arrangements I should Iik9 to spcak in the
presence of those concel'Dld in such arlallgements. I do not thi ·k I could
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go to nooi Grond to assist in any settlement, as I have nothing to say to it.
I can say that should nothing happen to hinder me, I shall gu.

According to Bechuana law any man trekking into the country requirt's
the consent of the Chid, and he knowlJ that he holds the land allotted to
him only on sufferance. No strangers who are simpfy visitors have been
given ground.

Premier.-You say that under the BecI1Usna law no stranger can settle
down in the country without YOllr consent. Now have you given your con­
sent to any strang-er settling down in the Barolong country of which you
Fay you are the Chi<>f?

Moshette.-I do not know how many white people first came. I think
80 or 40. Wherd they cam') from I do not know. We merely saw them
coming. The rest cnme in after we made peace. We only recognize the
first 80 or 40. They gave them the cattle (Montsioa's), which they had
promised them.

Premier.-Is there anyone at Rooi Grond entitled to speak for you, or are
you alone able to s~ cak ? .

MOBhette.-1t mny be a way of the white people to spenk through another,
but we alone must speak for our~elves All the Bechl1anas know I am Para­
mount Chief.

Premier.-Dot's Montsioa acknowleJge you?
~shette.-Th&tyOIl can ask Montsioa yourself. If he does not acknow·

ledge lne he will be simply. doing some underhand work.
Premier.-Would you llol be sorry to see Montsioa deprived of any por­

tion of his land? Do 10C. not wish them to have enough country to live
upon? If I were to tall you that Montsioa had now not enough country to
live upon, would you not be sorry ?

MOBhette.-1 should be sorry if Montsioa were to have no country; then I
have no country. When we fought we thought it would have been as of
old, but when the white people came the law was different. 'l'his is not the
firfot time we have foup:ht.

Premier.-Is it possible for Montsioa's people to live if the garden grounds
at Mafeking, Sehuba and Salaris be taken from them?

M08hette.-No, they would not be able to live. ..
Premier.- Is it necessary for him to have all those garden grounds to

enable him to live?
MOBheUe.-Yes. it is necessary.
Mr. Sprigg.-You and Montsioa being brothers, how is it yOll have fe,ugh

so often?
M08het~.-WIn' broke out and then we used to settle the matter.
Mr. Sprigg.-But why was war so frequent?
Moshette.-"Wor used to come just as two men travelling would have at

fight:.
M,". 8J.)rigg.-Did not the war originate in quarrels arising out of l'Iaims to

the paramountcy ?
Moshette.-The only quart'el of that 80rt was that relating to Rietfontein.

APPENDIX C.

REPORT OF AN INTKRVIEW BETWEEN THE HONOURABLE THE PREMIER OF THE
CAPE COLONY AND GASSI~SIBI A.ND nIS COUNOI~OBSAND MONTSIOA, HELD
AT KANYE, IN GASSITSIBI'S COUNTRY, ON THlI: 25TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 1884.

(INTERPRETER, Mn.. JOSEPH MOCARTHY, OJ' THE BECHUANALABD POLICE.)
P9"emier.-I am the representativo of the Queen's Government in the Cape

Colony. I did not ('orne here to see MOI'.tsioa, for I e1pected to see him
at his own place. I have come np to endeavour to effect such A peaceful
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settlement as-will seaure annexation to the Cape Colony of the countr, from
Griqualand.. WQSt. to Gassi.taihi's~ and. to place it pe1'IIlIJ.nently under the
Queen's Government. I expected to see Montsioa alhis- own station. beoause
I hacl to settle. how the line ·was to be drawn between him. and th.& Rooi
Grcmd. p-eopls., As he was. not. there the resll't was I could only make an
arrangement with the- white- peopl/). My business ht're is with Gassitsibi;
this is. his. aountry. I W&t.t tG know from. him when the Queen's Govern­
ment has the control of the country up to his boundary whether he will
ant in. good faith and remain. on good tel'ms with the Queen's- Government
and keep the peace. We do not want to take over his country but we want
to prevent anybody else from taking it. We- want to know if he: will
promise to protect Colonial interests, and that he will give his cQuntry to
DO one but the Queen's Governm.pot.. Further we want him to promise
that he will prevent cattle or other property stolen from Britisb subjects
from being brought into this country, and if sueh cattle- or property be
brought into this country, that he will see that. the stolen goods aTe returned
and the thieves given up. We also want him to keep open all trade roads
and to promise to levy no duties 01' licences upon Colonial trade. For this
the. GO'\lernment prDposps to ask the Cape Parliament to reward him. If he
is a friend to the Colonial Government the Colonial Go;ve-rnment win be a
friend. to him. I should like to know what he hal:' to. say to this... We do
not want to take an inch of his country. We only want to live in. peace.

Interpreter.-The Chief has sent. for his son, as he wishes him to hear what
takes place.
. Premier.-That is right.

[Bathoen,. the. SOD, here came inte the room.]
(}aBBitsibi (in reply to the Premier).-I have n,pthing to sl1.y except what

you have just said is my wish. I shall listen to what "Bettlement there is
with Montsioa before I sa.y further.

p"tmier (addressing Montsioa).-I shall first ask MontsioR how it is that
if he heard. I was at Rooi Grond and was waiting for him, he did not. CODle
to meet me. .

MontBioa.-I did not know that you were at Rooi Grond waiLing for me.
I was never informed that you were waiting for me.

Premier.-Did you hear of it yesterday ?
MontBioa.-Yes. Some of my people. came here yesterday and told me.
P"smier.-When Gassitsibi says that he wishes to hear the settlement with

Montsioa before he talks, docs he mean by that to say hat the i-s a Chief
nnde:r: Montsioa? He is an independent Chief, is he not?

GaBBitBibi.-Yes, I am aD. independent Chie:L
Premier.-Very well. Tell Montsioa I have come up here to make a

settlement of the coontry now occupied by bis people and white men. I
wish to know from him first how it was that he got into war.

HontBiotJ..-I should like to have spoken. in the presence of more of my
people than ara here to-dar. The first time war broko out it was through
Machabi's people; they came to me and asked my permission to live in my
country, and after that they commenced by stealing my horses. I tried to
re cover the horses but they took them and sold them to the Boers. After
a great deal of trouble I recovered them; but they were in such a condition
th ey were of no use to me. This was at the time that the Bl.itish Govern­
ment was fighting the Transvaal Boel"S. After that they cOllilmenced reap­
ing my corn, and they told me afterwards that the corn bt:longed to them.

Premier.-Has Montaioa any reason to think that anyone suggested to
th em to do this, or was it that there was a bad spirit in them, for there 'Vas
no war about?

Montsioa.-I cannot say. I do not know whether it was done in a bad
spirit or whether they were incited to do it. If I should say they were
incited to do it thnt would be mere I!uspicion. I have no authority to say that.

Prtmier.-When they trespassed on your ground what did you do? Did
you call out a Commando?



Montsioa.-Before Lhe first war started they fired on my people in their­
gardens. They sent me a message that the gardens belonged no more to me,.
that it was their garden and they should cut the crops. That was the first
commencement of the war.

Pf'emier.-Were you with·the Commando whicha.ttacked Rietfontein ?
Montrioa.-They had collected their forces and joined them with :Moshette.

I was with the Commando when it attacked Rietfontein. The attack was<
made just as theday was breaking. The sun rOS8 whilst we were still fighting-.

Pf'emier.-NoW' I do not say that I believe it, but I wish to tell Montsioa.
what I have heard-some of :Machabi's people haTe told me that m,:,n, women
a.nd children were killed indiscriminately. Is that true?

Mont8ioa.-No. It is false.
Premief'.-Montsioa says that the attack was made at daybreak. Surely it

is" possible that when the village was fired upon women and children might­
inadvertently have been killed.

Mont8ioa.-There was only one woman shot, and she was shot by her own
people. The men were in laager expecting to have to fight, and the women
were separate.

Premier.-But were not the hut& fired?
Montsioa.-.:.Yes, they were fired, but that was after we had driven the men

011t, and the women were turned out of the place.
Pf'emief'.-You mean to say that it was only after the men and women­

were driven out that the huta were fired?
Montaioa.-Yes, it was after we had returned from the pursuit.
Pf'emief'.-Is it not the native custom to fire the huts when making an

attack as you go along? .
Montsioa.-Yes, but we did not at Rietfontein fight after the usual native

manner.
Pf'emief'.-It is said that not only were women and children shot, but that

children were thrown into the flames, and that Mr. Bethell had to interfere.
Montaioa.-That is a lie. Mr. Bethell was not present at that fight.
Pf'emief'.-Montsioa, I have only asked these questions because these' Hlate­

ments have been made, and I wish to tell you that English people do not
like cruelty such as this. I have told you what I have heard sO that you
might have the opportunity of refuting them if· they were not true.

Mont8ioa.-They are false.
Pf'smier.-Very well; thon I believe Moshette after this got white volun­

teers to help his people.
Mont8ioa.-Yes, Moshette did get volunteers. The question had then been

settled. An English representative and Joubert. had come and decided in m~"

favour, and then it was that Moshette cume down down on me though every­
thing was settled. Before Moshette started fighting, Joubert and the English
representative said we were to be at peace and there was to be no more war.
I told them I intendeil to attack MoshQtte in consequence of his murdering
my people on their return from the Diamond Fields. They told me I wa~
not to fight. I said I would remain quiet but they would find that Moshette
would start the war. It was as I said. Moshette did start the fighting.

Pf'enii6'l".-Moshette having got white volunteers Montsioa also got white
voluuteers, did he not?

Montaioa.-No.
Premiet".-Does Montsioa assert thathe had no white volunteers at any time?
Mont8ioa.-I had no white volunteers.
Pf'emief'.-Montsioa had Bethell and Walker fighting for him.
MontBioa.-Mr. Bethell came first and Mr. Walker came afterwards.
Pf'emier.-I have seen a document giving the names of several men whose

names I cannot remember now, on whose behalf Bethell applied for farms
on the ground that the~ were white volunteers fighting for MontsioR. 'Vho
were these men?

Monmoa.-I do not know of these volunteers. It must be nothing' but
AOS. The people who get on the best Ilre they that tell that which is false.



Premier.-Dut Montsioa had confidence in Mr. Bethell, had he not' A.nd.
I have seen this list from Mr. Bethell claiming land for these men, CD. tile
ground that they were Montsioa's volunteers.

Montsioa.-I have heard ouly of these things after Mr. Bethell's death.
Premier.- Does Montsioa Bay that Bethell bad no authority from Idm t~

send in this list of volunteers, and that there was no foundation for what
Bethell did, for that is a serious reflection on Bethell?

.M"ontBioa.-If I had volunteers they ""ould have been known. They would.
have been known just as Mosbett.J's volunteers were knowc. I 118.d 119
volunteers.

Premier.-The result of the first war was that Montsion entered hlto terws
of peace with Moshette ?

JfontBioa.-Yes, we had peace.
(At this smge of the proceedings Montsioa Btopped speaking, and the Interpre­

ter stated that the Chief had Bent for tI.oo white men whom he wished should, b6
present at this interview.)

Premie/I".-I have no objection.
(Two traders, Mes87·s. James J. Keeley and II. Boyns, then cameJorwaril~

and said that at Montsioa's request they were pressnt. Mr. Upington repeaWl
that he had no objection to their being preB61It.)

Mr. Kseley.-We heard that you were coming yesterday, and Montsioa
came to see \1S. He seemed to be very much afraid.

Premiel·.-ft is very unfortunate that Montsioa is here, as I wished to see
lJim in his own countr3T, and I have been very much delayed by his .absence.

Mr. Keeley.-We told him that it was veri wrong of him. to rnn away.. an6
we adYised him to return to you.

Premier.-Y01.l und rdtand that I wished to see him resp~..cting the coun1l"y
that he required for his people to live on ?

Mr. Kseley.-Wc told him that we were quite certain tbat be would be
looked upon in the light of a defaulter.

Pt'emier.-I tell yOll candidly I regard him as such. I have just ns"ke(l
Montsion. why it was that he came away, and I must fay those. who ad\oised
him not to be present did him bad service. 'What I wished to do was to
bring him ftlce to face wilh the so-called volunteers, so that a fair and
proper settlement should be arrived at.

jh•. Keeley.-I believe that he thiuks that ho would be supported. by Mr.
JUackemie, and he does not understand what is being done now.

Mr. Boyne.-What he thinks is, that if no settlement is m~de now., tha.t the
troops will come up ; that is what he wants.

Premier --Well, you may tell him that if he does not show any disposition
to make a fair settlement without troops, he cannot look for assititance from
England. (To Montsioa.) Now this is a question that I wish ans,,·ered.
Did Montsioa consider tl1at the conditions of peace which he made witb
Moshet~e were binding? Did he feel himself bound by them?

MontBioa -After tIle peace was made with Moshette and l\fachabi, Moshette
left and went into the Transvaal. My son also went into the Transvaal.,
also the son of Gassitsibi went there.

Pt·emiet·.-That was when the Royal Commission was there.
Montsioa.-Yes; when they came back they brought Colonel Moy.sey W"'it

the:m, with Mr. Greef from the Transvaal. 'j hey made the lice; that WIl5

the liIle decided on by the British Government and the Transvaal. Theft"
was no native man with them in makiDg the line. The boundary line wa£
made for five persons-Ml'iDkoroane, Gassitsibi, Moshette, Masso:(H'" aDd
Montsiost. That was the boundary line between the Transvaal and the
Bechuana country. It was stated at the time that no person living OR the
outside was to go into the Transvaal to help them, and tha.t no 0Il.8 was ttl
come OVEr from the Transvaal to Rssist us in any matter on this side. Tbis
is what the British Government had Rettled with the Boers. That was wbeu.
Colonel Moysey made the boundary line•. Whilst Colonel Moyaey was still
here he engaged people from me to place the beacuDs, and I gave him. a r~ .

H
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me-ut to help him. Moshette sent out a party against them. Colonel Moysey
WIlS afr!lid, Ilnd he sent that party back again, as he said if anyone waS to
die he would die, because he s~id he had been- sent to lay down the Tine ond
he )vollld do it. rrhen my children came back to me to Sehuba. That is ho,v
the fighting commenced. Thf-Y also attacked me at the same time os I
nttacked Rietfontein, ubout sumiee. At midday I routed them. The fllurth
lIay afterwards I saw them coming again, and then I saw that they had white
men with them.

Pre11iier.-That is t11e first time they (arne with any white men?
.J/onfsioa.-The first fight they were standing a distance off.
Premier.-Does he mean that the white men were, or doC's he allude to the

hoder guard under Commandant Snyman?
Jfonts2oa.-Thev were the some men ,,,ho afterwards attacked me with

~Ia('habi's people: They came from the Transvaal. MosJletto's and Machabi's
people also came from tho Transvaal side After leaving pQlfontein they
enme OVH to Hooi GroiJd. They comme -ced on the east side of Mr. Rowland's
111ace wlH're Nicolas Gey is now. That is the point they attacked me from
cady in the morning at Sehuba.

Premier.-Did the white men join in the attack on you at Sehuba?
Monfsioa.-The first attack on Sehuba the Boers stood on one side. I did

not know who they werE', bu~ I afterwards found out that they were Boers.
P,·emieto.-How many engagements were there at Sehuba?
Monts2oa.-Three engagements. After the third engagement I went fl'Om

Schuba to' Maffeking. After that Moshette came with the Boers down the
UolC'po River to l\Iaffeking. It was a large commando. There were a large
number of Boers with it. We fought eVbry day. We fought every day for
two years. I killed one of their headmen and they came and asked me to
p:ive his body up. The headman was killed in an engagement at night. I
gaT'e his body to them and they returned after that to Polfoutein. They came
back again after that and the war continued and they captured a lot of cattle.
" e had a hard fip;ht for tbe cattle. It jg getting on now fOl fOUl"" years, and
1here has beeu 01w a)·s war in my country. It was useless to continue the battl"',
b clime we had fought evtry day in the year. The first commencement of
tl.e peace was when Coos Snyman came. He said, "We want peace j let us
ha"o it." Is id, "Yes. fuppose we haye peace, huw is that to be deter­
milled on?" I told him that wbp.o people made peace they had to remain at
peact". Next day he said we should have a. meeting at which all w('re to Le
present. 'Va SllW them brillg a document and they told me whoever refused
his signature to this document did not want peace, and they told me that the
volunteers had taken the country all down the Molopo and they asked me to
spf'ak. I said" I bave nothing to say," and that I saw two men-one was
an Englishman, the other was a Doer, and I saw thE'm make a line. To-day
I saw atrl\ngers making a line along the river. I said I should like to see
the two first and ask them if they had changed their minds. I said I could
not say- anything until I snv those two meo. 10 putting my name to the
uocllment I said I only-sign<d for peace and that is all.

Premier.-l\Iontsioa caa never expect me to believe that lle did not know
what was itl that docnment.

Montsioa.-The document was not written by me and I did nut know
what was in it.

Premier.-'Montsioa mutlt remember seeing Mr. Rutherfoord, who made
a strong report ill his fav, ur to the British Goyernment ?

JfMtsioa.-Yes.
P,oemimo.-M:ootsioa. sllowec1 Mr. Rutherfoord this document, and Mr.

Hutherfoord took a trnnslation of it. Mr. Rutherfoord says in his report that
certain clauscs were expunged because Mon'sioa refused to sign them. I
will remind Montsioa of what those clauses were. One was that Montsioa
should tnl~e down his schanzes within a certain time and the other was that
he should puy a war indemnity of - pounds.

11onfs·oa.-Yes.
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P,·emie,'. - If Montsion know EO well the contents of the treaty as to contest
the clauses· which were expunged, he will get no honest man to believe: tllflt
IJe did not know everything that was in that. treaty.

Mont8ioa.-Why I refused was be~fluae I waa- told to pull down my schanzes,
:and I I'efuRed also to pay any war indemnity.

P,',mier (to MI'. KeelE:y).-Montsioa will never get anyone to believe that
lIe did not know the ",hole of tha contents of that trea.ty. The truth, I
suppose, wail that he was at death's door, and he signed tho treaty as being
ihe best terms he could g.·t.

11£-1'. Keel61J,-He snid so yesterday.
Pre11'l,ier.-It strikes me that he also misled Mr. Rutherfoord as to the 17th

clause of that treaty. Mr. Rlltllerfoord in his report in th& Blue-book
rcprtsents the 17th clause as having been expunged before signature, but I
llO,ve scen the .original treaty signed by Montsioa and his CWlncillQrs in the
possession of the Destuur of Lnnd Goshen, from which it C'learly appear~'that

the treaty was sign-ed subject only to the Brd and 19th clauses bei;gg expunged.
If in the counterpart shown to Mr. Rutherfoord the 17th clause is lI.1so
declared to be expunp;ed there mu.st be 8 forf!..ery. ~'his treaty practicully
deprived him of all land south of tIle Molopo River.

Mr. Boyne.-JIe told u~ yesterday tbat he would have signed anything for
peace.

Premier.-Such is the fortune of war. France hlld to sign a very distaste­
ful trenty at the conclusion of th8 Franco-German war in order to secure
peace.

Mr. Boyne.-Montsioa told us that be had fled from :Maffeking when yOll
were expectE:d because he was afraid j he says now that he is bound to say
that he is a Boer with bis mouth, but be is not so in his heart.

Premier.-It seems to me that he bealS tbat the iI'oops are com.ing up, and
he thinks by staying awa.y until then he will get all his land back again.

Mr. Boyne.-Yes.
P,',mi61·.-Very well, that is not quite IlOl1lourable in the face of his treaty.
Mr. B01lne.-We have told him so, and we have advised him to acknow-

ledge that treaty, and to tell you the truth in every way.
Mr• .Keele1l.-Yes, we have asked hiIn to tell the whole truth and to keep

not,lrlng back from you.
Pr61nier.-I do not like hiB h:aving his statioII, and then not telling me

the t ruth as to the reason. Weare trying to do all in our power for him.
C'!rtain lands must be secured tc certain vCIIlJnteHs '" ho acquired rights to it
beforo the formal declaration of British Protectorate. I cannot see how the
engagoment entered into with them can n<.w be broken. They must get the­
land. Other land mmst be set apart for the Colony, which is unde.rtaking c
pensive government, and must have some return for it, and bona fide ]'ighx
generally must be secured. If out of the residue there should be any land &~
our di~pol:lal to be given to Montsioa, in addition to what is provided for him
by our agreoment with the Rooi Gronders, we should consider whethGr S@ID8
further land might not be givfn to him in calld it should be clear that his
people required it. Weare only too anxious to giye him good terms, if he
will only meet us.. Our present proposal is to reinstate bim in possession of
the land at Sehuba, Ma:ffeking and Salhis, with ample grazing ground on the
north bank of the river. That is far more than he was in the undisturbed
pop session of when the British Protectorate was established, and I cannot
11elp thinking it is en excellent settlement for him.

1J1,'. B01lne,-~ sbould think so. Would he be a British subject?
P,'emier.-Yes. We desire to give him all the land he Inay reasonably

require, and Mr. Sprigg is st pI'esent at Maffeking awaiting Montsioe, to go
into matters ,\'ith him, and he will be greatly disappointed at his not being
there.

Mr. Boyne.-He has been sent away.
MI', Keeley.-Would it DOt be better for Montsion to unconditionally cede'

his tel'l'itory to the Cape Colony, and leave it to decide what land he is tb
hl.\'fe?

H2
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Premier.-There is to be a public meeting' at Rooi Grond on Friday, and'
we should like to see Montsioa there.

Mr. Keeley.-He is still a little hostile to yo_, as he thinks that you have
made terms with the Boers, and that you ha,re given away hili land to the
Boers.

Premi6'l' (to Montsioa).-Hnve you enough ground now for your people to
live upon?

Montsioa -I have no country. .
Premier.-·That is since the peace with Joubert. It is chiefly grazirag

groun:! that you have now. What more do you require?
Montsioa.-AU the ploughin~ land in the country has been taken from mc.
Premier.-But supposing the Colonial Government obtains for you the

garden ground around Maffeking, Sehuba and Saliris, will you not be satiA­
fied?

Montsioa.-I want an the ploughing land down" the river.
Premier.-That cannot be given to you, for that is virtually giving JOlt

back the whole of the country, jn violation of your treaty, and restoring you
to land in which you were not in the undisturbed possession when the
British Protectorate wa.s established.

(Montsioa here consulted with those around him.)
Montsioa.-I have given up all hopes of getting my country.
Premi6'l'.-WeU, supposing we make the arrangements for you that I have

already explained, will you not be satisfied?
Mont8ioa.-What can I say to-day? When 1 am asked what 1 want, of

course I want all my country. I do not want to Bay how I have been
treated by the white people.

Premier.-I have nothing to do with the Transvaal. I represent Her
Majesty's Government in the Cape Colony, and I have come here with the
assent of the Imperial Goyemment. Montsioa apparently positively refuses
to take any part in a settlement until armed men are placed in his country.
If he thinks that he will obtain the assistance of BritIsh troops under such
cireumstao ces, I must tell him, in my opinion, he is much mistaken. The
British public will not favour a man who refuses to discuss a fail' settlement.
He evidently thinks that if I fail to bring about 8 settlement, Colonel
Warren will come up with British troops.

Mr. Boyt~e.-That is so.
Prtfmw (to the Interpreter).-Tell Montsioa that notes are being taken of

all that is now occuITing, that everything will appear in official documents,
and if he shows no inclination to meet me I am inclined to think that not a
soldier will come here, and the Brilish public will view his conduct with
~reat dissatisfaction. I have come to this remote country at great personal
inconvenience to do my best for him, and 1 want him to come down to his
own station, and in the presence of his o'wn people, to show me what land he
requires, and to have pointed out to him where the beacons will be placed.

Montsioa (after a few minutes' silAnce).-Mr. J.'pington can see Mr. Wl·ight.
He knows all about it. I Jlave the country to Mackenzie, and Mackenzie
deputed Wright to be his representative.

Premier.-Who told you that Colonel WalTen and the troops were coming?
Mont8ioa (after a long consultation with councillors and others).-I have

merely heard it through the newspapers.
Prtfmi6'l'.-But Montsioa cannot read. Who conveyed the infonnation to

him?
(The Interpreter then remarked that he had 8een recent newspaper8 Witll

per80n8 at MaffeT.,"ing who could read them.)
Premier.-Finally, I wish it to be conveyed to Montsion that I come to his

country to get as much land as possible for him. I have succeeded in
getting back for him far more land than was given to bim by his own solemn
tresty. White people regard these tr<.'aty arrangements, and strictly speaking
Montsioa might be bound by his. Certainly Montsioa has not strengthened
his case by not meeting me fairly with rt'gard to this matter. A meeting of



Xl

the Goshenites has been callEd for the 28th instal,t, and I wished him to
come face to face with them, to speak out his mind openly, and to tell me
what be wanted, as I wished to make a good settlfmcnt for him. It is for
him now to say whether he will be present or whether he will not. I shall
th('n be in a po~ition to Bay where his beacons will be placed, so that the
good intentions of the Queen, in his favour, may be carried out. After that I
hope he will keep his people from stealing, and see that they maintain peace.
A Government officer will be appointeti, to whom he can always apply when­
ever he wants any redress for wrong done to him, and for advice when he is in
auy difficulty. As soon as we can make arrangements we shall also bave
a police force to secure the keeping of the peace by every man, whether
white or black. That is all I have to sllY.

llfontsioa.-You did not understand. What I wished to say was that Mr.
'Vright was left by Mackenzie, and if you see Mr. Wlight, even if I am not
present, you can speak with him.

P,'emier.-Why Mr. Wright? He is not-your .gent.
jllontBioa.-I have given my country oyer to the Queen, and Mr. Mackenzie

left Mr. Wrig-ht in charge of it.
Premier.-Mr. Mackenzie is no longer the Queen's representa.tive. Mr.

Rh'ldes has COine since as Deputy Commissioner.
MontBioa.-1f Mr. Mackenzie informs me that he has nothing more to do

with the country then I can speak with you.
Premier.-When I get back to Rooi Grond I shall be compelled to go

on with the settlement, and if Montsion is not present it will be hopeless
for him to expect to be listened to if he complains of the settlement after­
wards. I think I ha.ve effected a ,eery good settlement indeed for him. I
llave obtained for him a great deal more land than he had when he, as an
independent Chief, entered into the trt'aty with Moshette. As I said before,
white men must respect their treaties, and why not nativo Chiefs? I have
come here to represent the Queen's Government, and Montsioa will, for the
future, be under the Queen. Surely you know you entered into that treaty
with Moshelte ?

·Mr. Boyne.-We all know the trea.ty. But fllr that treaty Montsioa's
peo~le would have been annihilated. I think he is very lucky in getting
such an excellent settlement.

(GassitBibi and Montsioa requested that the!JI might l~ave Jurtl~er time to
£leliberate, promiBing to give an anBWBt' subBequently.)

I/'t tlte Cout'se of the afternoon the conversation between Montsioa, GaBBitsibi
and the Prem,ier 'WaS continued.

P,·emier.-I wish again to point out that the Cape Government has no
,lesire to obtain possession of any part of Gassitsibi's terJitory. I should pre­
fer to see him govem his own people, but I think he ought to promise me
that, as soon as the Cape Government is established np to his terlitory, that
any cattle belonging to British subjects improperly brought into his terri­
tOI)", or any thievel!l coming iuto his counh'y, should be given up to the Colo­
nial Government. He ought also to promise me not to give up his country
to anybody but the Queen of England; that he will protect English trade
here, and allow trade to come freely from the Colony and to :Rass over the
ronds of his country, without any duties being levied or licences charged.
If he will promise to do tb.is, I will bJing the matter before the Colonial
Parlit.ament, and will ask for such reward as the Parliament may think fit to
grallt him.

(Ga8Bit-Bib£ asked that the interDiew migltt w.lce place in the presence 0/Mil
Bon, toho was Bent/or.)

Bcttlwen, the chiqf'B eldest Bon, being present, Mr. Upington proceedetl to rspco"
'I.vhat he had alrtoify said to GaBBit,ibi.

P,·em,ier.-Gassitsibi will flee what has occurred to Montsioa, and unless
l50me such arrangement as we propose to him is made the same may occur to
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Gassitsibi. If Gassitsibi's people will only rE'ly on the Colonial Gov<.>rllment,.
we 'Y!ll see that they get their Tights and that no man interferes with them.
We do not want to take over their count~"Y, or to ta.x them, or to exercise­
direct government in any way. '1.'0 taka o,,·er the country means 1\ loss­
to the Colony of thousands a :rear, and we have no dcsire to add to our
responsibilities in that way. If, however, Gassitsibi wiIl.enter into an alliance
with us, we will take care that no white man or black man in the country
shall be wronged in any way. All we want is to be on friendly terms with
the Chiefs, and that theyshollld tell the Government ev, rrthing that ~oes on,.
so that if they are wronged, or if they want advice, they will tell us, and we
will try to help them. If Boers or any other people try to injure them they
would then refer to Cape Town Rnd the matter would be looked into.
We do not wish Gllssitsibi to give refuge here to any person whom
:be knows 10 be an enemy of the Queen of England, nnd we wish him.
to give protection to the Queen's subjects, whether they be tradE'l's'
or otherwise. If any perSOll or Government comes he. e and asks.
Gassitsibi to give up his country, we wish him to be able to Eay
" No j I can only give my country to the Queen of England." I wish him to­
clearly understllnd that we do not ",'ant to take over his country, but we wish
to prevent anybody else taking it over. If Germany or the Transvaal or any
other nation or people should ask Gassitsibi for his country, we wish Gassit­
sibi to say" No j I am the Queen's man." If he does that for the Queen's
Government at the Cape, it is only fa.ir that the Queen's Government at the
Cape should do something for him in return. Now, what would he lIke us
to do for him in return? What would he like me to ask the Cape Parliament
to do for him? If I tell the Cape Parliament what the Chief promises to dO:r
I havo no doubt that the Cape Parliament will agree to do somelhing for
him. Now wllat will the Chief and hi~ people sa:r to snch fttl arr,lnge!.Lent?

Ga88itsibi.-I -wish my son to speak first.
Premier.-VeJ."y well. What has his son to say P
Bathoen.-All I can say is that I am afraid that this is not a. ma.tter

which can be settled with only my fa.tha· and my&elf. I think we must con­
sult our people before we enter into sucll -au al'rangemoo.t, and just now om'
people are all out plollghing.

Premier.-It will be well that the Chief should consult Ilia people before
he makes this arrangement, so that everyone should understand it. TIley
should understand that if no such arrangement is made Gassitsibi may timl
some people coming in and taking ilis countI'Y away from him. 'Ve propose
that he should be an independent Cbief and govern the country himself.
Perhaps Gassitsibi would like to consult Mr. Price, who is at Sech.le's countrv,
before he makes up his mind. "

Bathoe71.-I do not think 'there is any intention on the part of thO'
Transvaal to tc.ke away our "Country. Piet Joubert was sent to bring peace,
and since 'that there has been peace and no more war. Schoemlln also came
and told us that he 'wanted peace. It is with "ery great thankfulness that we seet
you here to-day, and to ·::tnow that we have you as such fi.-iends. 'Ve also
know that the Boers are -at loggerheads with the English over the Tra.nsvaal,
that it belonged to the Boers, and the British took it over. and, thereforE", weare
very thankful when we see to-day the Chief of the white people. "Ve kno\v
the boundary which divides the country of the black and wllite people. It was
the Boers that broke first that line. 'Vhel'e are the laW's nowwhich were made­
at Pretoria 'respecting that liu' Where are they to-day P 'Ve want peace
and rest, flnd we know that we shall get rest no\v we have seen1he Chief of
the white people.

Premier.-The gl'eat grievance of these people seems to be that one day they
are told to regard one boundary line and another day they are told '10 ~'egard
another boundal"y line. Will Gassitsibi tell me to-day what is 'the boundo.'·y
line between Montsioa and himself ?

Bathoen. -It comes fi.·om the desert.
P7"!'mier.-How am I to know what the bounda1'Y is when people tJ.respaes



x~ii

into your country if you cannot tell me what the boundary is ? FO.3sibly, if yJU
do not tell what the line is, a line may be drawn which is not the l'ight 0 Ie,
and this will be all your fault, because you will not tell us wha.t is the }'eal
boundary. It was only the other day that l\1ankoroane told me, mile b)' mile,
the boundaries of his country, Surely if l\faukoroane could do this Gassitsibi
should also be able to do the same?

BathotTl.-'Va have not required to enter into the question of a boundary
iine between Gassitsibi and Montsioa, because 'we ha,"e been on such fricmllJ"
relations.

Premier.-But surely a boundary line between the two tribes is known, eyen
if Chiefs are on the most friendly terms P

Gassitsibi.-The only boundary line I know is between In. self and the
Transvaal, not between myself and Montsioa.

Bathoen.-Our people have lived together, and we have not made troublo
about bouniaries.

Premier.-I have come here for the purpose ofmaldng a settlement which
shall do justice to l\Iontsioa. I want to find out the boundary between his
country a.nd Gassitsibi, but if Montsioa leaves his station and also leaves me to
find out everything for myself, he must not complaiu hereafter. I was so
anxious to settle this that I left within a few bours after the Imperi.tl Govern­
ment had agreed that I should come and see if we could settle this matter
r eaceably. I do not complain of Montsioa's being away from hi.l:J station.
That may llave been accidental, but on the day we arrived at Rooi Grond one
of his people informed me that a man had been dc~patched to bring him back~

Although none of his peop'e seemed ta .know ",heJ.·e he .had gone, yet a white
man who lives near Montsioa's station told me some days ago that we sho'lld
find Montsioa at Kanye, and that Montsioa's peuple knew VeI'Y well where he
was. I have since then been to Maffeking and I ha.ve spoken to his people, a'ld
I got whlli ioformatiou I could from them respecting the war. Now what I want
to know is 110W a white man knew l\IoDtsioa ,vas at Kanye when bis
people did not know it, or, if knowing, they refused to tell me. I shall
nmv have to leave for Rooi Grond, and when I report to. the Queen',ti
Government I have made a settlement, they will ask me if l\Iontsioa
has agl'eeed. I shall sa.y, "No; he got out of my way .so as not to gh"e
me any informat;on, and the 1'esult bas been that I have beeu obliged to make
the settlement without him." I tell MontsiolJ. to his face that it will not be
right of him if anything goes wrong 10r him.to ~mpl&in if he will not assist ill
making the settlement. If he does complain I shall say that it .was hilS OW11
fault, because he would not tell J!~e what he wanted. He is VelY much mista.ken
ill making no attempt to effect n. settlement because he wishes to see the tI'OOpS.
'1'be Boers have agreed to my terms, and they are such as Cllable MOlltsioa's
people to have as much land as I think they should have. I shall now have t J

go on with the settlement of the country without Montsioa's assit3tance, because­
he will not help me. When the b~acons are fixed the noer~ will Yaca..te tho­
country, which they have undertaken to do, and Montsioa.'s peopIe will o(.cUP}~
it. If it should happen that the beacons are wrongly placed, it will be because
:Montsioa was not there, and would render no assistance. As ~oon as Pa.rliament
meets the country will probably be annexed to the Colony, tIond the question of
Montsioa~s boundaries will then be Settled for ei-er. 'V"lJen that bag J:>CCll
arranged, I 'Shall ask Gassitsibi to enta" into a:l .arl"angement '\vith the Cape
Colony to give up any thieves whic4 come here, to.1)1·otoot OUl' traders, to pJ'om.iso­
to levy no dues on goods passing through the country tB.Dd to keep the u:ade
l'Jute open, and to prpmise not to give Ms countl'y over to any foreign GO'I"el'n­
ment. If he will promise to do this, I will pt'opose ta Parliament that some
recognition should be made of his services.

Montsioa.-You must not blame me. You did not illfvrm me by leter .tJlat
you were coming. If you had said that you would have been there OIl suoh a
day I would have been there to meet you. Not knowiug that you were "COllling
I went away for the good of my health. If you do not give me jUtticc it is
not my fault.
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Premier.-I desire to do l\-Iontsioa the fullest justice, and if I should do him
-any injlt8tice it is because of his absence when the settlement is being arranged.

MontBioa.-It would seem that you did not come np to settle with me, but
with the Boers. I did not know you were coming.

Premier.-N0 one k.new I was coming. The Boers did not know 1 was
coming. As soon as I came I placed myself in communication with Maft"eking,
and tbe people there promised me that they would at once send for Montsioa
and bring Mm back. Now, I want to know from Montsioa why Montsioa did
·Jlot return as his people promised he would P

MO'1ltsioa.-1 came in my wagon, which is now gone away to get wood, but
if it comes back I will immediately retm-n.

Premier.-This morning' I was informed that Montsioa left because he was
maid, and now he says he left for the benefit of his health. What is the true
~oryP

MtmfBioa.-What I said this morning I do not deny. I gave my country to
Mackenzie, and 'Vright was left by Mackenzie in charge of my country.

Prmnier-.-There is no doubt whatever but that Montsioa gave up his country
to the Quren, and the Queen can remove him if she wishes from the land to­
morrow; but there is no wish to remove him. What I want to know from
him is, how much land his people requu'e, and he will not tell me•

.Mofitsioa.-When am I wanted to be there P
P,·emier.-I do not propose to place any pressw'e npon Montsioa to be there.

1 ~ay he onght to be tliere when the settlement takes place, and it will be better
for bim.

M'ontsioa.-If my wagou comes I will go back immediately. It is not neces­
Dry that I should be there. The settlement can be made without me, and if I
1m not satisfied I can still go to England and tell in what respect I have been
tileeeived. What security can you give me that the very first morning after you
leave I shall not hear a shot fired, as I h~rd the morning after Mackenzie
leftP

Pl'emier.-Does Montsioa really mean this P I have already told him that
the eonvel'sa.tibn we are now having will appeal' in official documents, and does
lte wish me to state in those documents that ifI make a settlement for him of
which he approves, well and good, but that if I do not that he will go in person
to the Impm'ial Government and complain of the settlement P Does he mean to
say tflat he will not come to assist me in making a settlement P If that is his
p8sition, then it is an intelligible one, but I want to know from him precisely
wllat it is he means.

1f000'sioa.-Mackenzie made a settlement, and then he went to Rooi Grond,
and immediately he left the Convention line was broken, I do not see that any
Convention line can be binding. I do not see that any line can be made which
cannot be broken.

Prtmi~r. -Do I understantl from Montsioa that he has no desire to fake any
part in tbe settI. ment, tltat he will allow negotiations to go on but that he will
Dle no part in them l'

Montsioa.-Why do you think so P
p,.tmier.-From his statement that he will allow the settlement to go on in

lis absence and that if he is not satisfied he will make complaint•
.llont8ioa.-The great argument I think is that I have no proof that after the

.38ttJement bas been made and the beacons placed they will not be taken down,
and the same trouble we had before will not occur again.

..A-ernier.-'rl'Jat is his fear. I tell him that the settlement if properly made
Ind approved of by Her Majesty's Government will be kept. Montsioa. need
)lot baTe been afraid and have run away from Maffeking.

Montlioa.-Who says that I'm afraid P I am not even aft'aid of death, fOl'
tleath only is known to God.

Pnmier.-Now let us have a decided answer. Let it be yes or no. Is
]footsioa coming down to help us in effecting the settlement?

J[,.tsioa.-If my wagon comes I will try to come down.
rremier.-Montsioa will understand that a meeting is to be held on Friday
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llext to discuss the arrangement a~ signed by the BestuUl' of Goshen. On
Saturday I will be prepared to go over the ground with l\Iontsioa, getting Mm
to show me what land will be sufficient for his people. If Montsioa iii sineere
in wishing for a settlement he will be there on that day. Gassitsibi will under­
stand that our desire is that we should live on friendly terms. We only wish
"\l'ell to his people, and when Montsioa's country is annexed to the Cape aud the
Cape Colony's borders adjoin to that of Gassitsibi that we shall have a good
undel'standing. I must now leave. tor I have to return to Rooi Grond and heal·
what they have to say there. These m'e my last wOI·ds.

Gassitsibi.-I bad wished to have spoken, but my SOli says tbat I must not
-spealt.

Premier.-It is the custom in EUl'opean countries for the father to teU the
SOl1 what he should do and not the son the father. Anyhow you have heard
'What I have said, and I will ask Bathoen ifh", intends to put this matter before
his people when they have come in after the ploughing.

Batkoer...-Yes, I will do that.

The inteniew then broke up. llathoen accompaned Mr. Upington through
the village and expressed his great desire to be on the friendliest terms with the"
'English people, and his regret that his people were out ploughing that day, tor
he would like to have the answer at once.

LBTTER FROM: KEBALEPILE, SON OF MONTSIOA, TO THE HON. J. G. SPRIGG.

Mafekeng, Molopo, Novemb81' 18, 1884.
'To the Hon. Mr. Gordon ~prigg,

Rooi Grand, Transvaal.
SlR,- I received your letter late last night} and called the Cbief's Councillors

together. .After reading, I sent off a messenger to my father the ChiefMontsioa.
But as the cattle posts where he is at present visi!ing are some days :b'om here,.
feel afraid that he cannot come soon. Then he 18 an old man and at present
rather unwell thl'ough all the worry that has been in his couno'y, must travel
.slow. I feel certain that my father did Dot know anything of your coming or
be would never have left here soon eight days ~. and )'esterday afternoon was
the :first we faw of your coming. Then the papers only said Bechuanaland,
and that is a large countrY. Messrs. Rhode~. Bower and the Police came to
Bechuanaland. We never saw anything of them. Therefore I hope you will
not think as yesterday, that my father ran away from your coming, as I feel
sure he would be glad to meet anyone that was likely to make a Peace Settle­
ment in his country.

I remain, Honor Sir,

Yours truly,

KEBALEPILE l\IONTSIOA..

APPENDIX D.

INTERVIEW BETWEEN MOSEPEJ.E, A. NA.T17.1ll TUCHER, AND MINISTERS~IN THE
VELDT-ON SUNDAY, 16TH NOVEMBER, 1884:.

Johan Mosepele, a native teacher of the tribe of Moshette, living close to
Kllnana, came to us at the first outspan after leaving Kunana. It having been
explained to him who those were whom be was addressing, he was asked to
give a true narrath'e of the attack by Montsioa on Rietfontein. He said :-1
will tell you ihe truth. The commencement of the war was at Rietfontein.
Montsioa, without any pl'ovocation, was the aggressor. Montsioa said that he
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must be tbe Pllramount Chief. :Moshette said no; we most livequietly together.
Montsioa So.'\id no; I will thrash Machabi. Moshette saidno ; here is & beast (an OX)
take it; you must not beat Machabi. Moshette go.ve Montsioa an ox. not to beat
Machabi. Mo~tsioa took the ox and killed it, ....ndwe thaaght there 'Would be
no war. They parted. About a month after, withont gh ioganynotice, Mont~ioas
men came to Rietfontein oorly in the morning and fired into the village. I \\ as
there. 1\1en, women and childl'eu, old I eople, cripples, and infants sucking at the
breast were killed. MOlltsioa han a great fOl"Ce with him. The Ykalifijn people
he brought with him. He burnt the town down; the men, women and childl'en
were asleep. They had arms with them, but they were taken by snrprise and
had no time to use them. l\Iolltsioa must have killed ilbout lOOpeople. I saw
the people run away and they were shot down like sprilJgboks. I ran away.
'Ve came and told Moshette. Moshette was startled. We told them the people
at Rietfontein were dead. He said, how can they be dead when we have had
no quarrel with Montsioa P 'rhcre were.no Boers present (at Ri~tfolitein).

There were none but Kafirs. In the first fight between Moshette and Montsioa,
Montsioa fled. Moshette burnt his place because Montsioa ho.d burnt Rict­
fontein. I am Il. teacher. I am not paid for it. I learnt to be a teacher in the
Orange Free State at Moroko by 1.'haba Nchu. I was taught by •cott, Daniel,
Camm"on, Rudolph. It is long time since I left "there. I left tkere about six or
seven ·,'ears a o.

In answer to the question ns to whether the Barolongs would be under the
British 01" Boers, he said 1hat he was not a Captain or ... trader, and he could
only tell what he saw with his own eyes. Moshette would answer snch questions.
In answer to the question, would you l·athel· be under the B~itish 01· tho
Transvaal Government P Mosepele shrugged his .shouldera and nid, "What
can I do?"

.A.PP.ENDIX"E..

TREATY "BETWEEN MA"NKOnOA'liE !IlKD M21S8OUW.

I, the undersigned Mankoroane lfolahaba.nquo '8.ud my ..eouncillors on the
ODe side, and Da.vid Massouw .Riet Taaibosch ..and .his councilloce, togethel·
with the members of management, on the othEn· side, hereby solemly declare,
in the presence of the here undermentioned witnesses, ..that thid day, .the 26th
day of July, 1.882, tt.e hostilities be.tween us have ceased, .and that we
have hereby appointed the following gentlemen, viz. :-

G. J. v. Niekerk, Chabman,
A. J. G. de 10. Rey, SeniOl',
F. Stroebel,
C. H. C. King,
AgenOl" Daumas,

as a Commission over matters nO\v, further to arl-ange, and in order to beacon oft"
boundaries between Taungs, Mamusa and Phokwane, and furth~ to determine
and beacon oil the territory which to the volunteers of David Massouw must
be awarded, which boundaries shall be recognized by all sides; and we fllrthel·
declare that each of these Chiefs shall be independent of each other~

This Commission shall be choson immediately, and at once commence theil·
operations to determine these said lines, and to put up the nec~ssary bea~ons.
In the event of any dispute or difference arising between the members of the
said Commission, or later between the Captains and their subjects, both
-parties declare that they will leave the case to the settlement .of, and decision
of, the Government of the South Aft"iean Repnblic, by which decision b9th
parties tlhal1u.bide. .

Further, we declare, both sides, that we will n-ever.call in the Ipl"-Otootion of
any other Government excepting tbe Governmen.t oCthe South..Aftica.n Republic,
under whose pl"otection we shall be safe and unmolested.
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Thus done and signed to-clay, the 26th day of July, 1882, in the presence of
the undersigned witnesses.

As witnesses-
Theodore Dams, Secretary of David 'Ma~souw.

H. I I. Boeschoten.
D. M. Riet Taaibosch.
Jeremiah, his X mark, General.
Kastin, his x mark, Raadslid.
David Links, his X mark, Ouderkapstcll.
David Links, his X mark, Raadslid.
Lul>:as Links, his X ma,'k, Raa.dslid.
Saaibrand Dnm'as, his X mal'k, Raadsli t.
Botlasitse Gasibone, his X mark, Molahabanque,
Jallt,le van Janld, his x mark, Raadslid.
Janki, his X mark, Haadslid.
Fra.ns l\Iatlabane, his X mal'k, Ouderkapstp.n.
Louw, his X mark, Raadslid.
lfankoroane~ his X mark, l\Iolahabanque.
Kassayne, his X mark, Molahabanque.
Masi, his X mark, Mahura.
l\fo]ale, his X mark, 'Molahabg,nque.
Tokoe, his x mark, Maleti.
~rholotiti>Jne, his X mark, Mase.
Tagaayane, his x mark, Saku.

As wi!Dcsses- J. Jacoba.
R. L. 'Lamertine.
C. H. Coyte King.

APPENDIX .F.

TREATY BETWEEN 1\1oBHETTE AND MONTSIOA.
Translation from original Dutch counterpart in possession of the ChiefMontsloa

at Maffeking aod submitted to R. Uutherfoord, SCCl'etal'y to Briti$h Resident,
on .21st Nevembe1', J882.
D-eed of Oonditio-Rs of Peace Q;'1d fhe Te7'tn8 the'l'eof lllid down and agreed upon

'between us, the illnawsigned Ohief8 and -our Captains and COUJncillorB, on
the 24th October, 1882.

Alfi. 1.-We lay down our arms on both sides and conclude 0. peace under
111e regulations following.

ART. ~r.-Eo.ch of us, Moshette and l\.Iontsioa~shall be Captains 1'espectively
of his own. tribe, independent of and not 'Subject to eacll other, but shall lIence­
forth be Tnled and managed within OU1' borders over our o\vn subjects and
possessions, and as such only subordinate to the lo.,,"s and orders of the Govern­
ment of the South African Republic and under its protection.

ART. 3.-Each of us shall be obliged" ithin the time of two daJ8 after con­
clusion of "this peace to leave onr at present fOl'tified town 01' position, and to
destl·oy and 1.'UZe to the gl'ound all defences (schanses) 01' occupied places.

.ART. 4:.-Inasmuch as we henceforth place ourterritory and aU 001' pOllSeSSiOlls
under1he laws and protection of"the Government of tIle -South African Republic,
we each bind om'schres mutually and stlveralIyihat no fortifications or works of
position shall be m'lde within our limits 01' afterwards be erecte<l without the
permission uf the abovenamed Government.

ART. 6.-ft is hereby distinctly understood that neither of us will ever
henceforth undert.lke any hostilities against each (,rher or agaillst anyathel'
person within or beyond onr territOl"Y withont the prel'iol1:J knowledge of the
Government of the South Africa.n Republic.
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ART. 6.-Every difference that may hereafter arise 01' be occasioned between
us and our subjects, and which we are not able to arrange in an amicable
manner and without expenses, shall be submitted to the final decision of the
Government of the South African Republic. NO" Wllol' shall exist in respect
thereof without the consent of the aforesaid Government.

ART. 7. - Under no circumstances whatevel' shall either of us individaally
()r jointly resort to any other State or Government with complaints or anything,
except and exclusively to the 'l'ransvaal 01' South African Republic aforesaid,
whose decision only shall be decisive and binding in all matters.

AnT. 8.-It is distinctly understood that all engagements 01' debts made or
contracted by each of the respective parties before this date must be acknow­
ledged and duly honoured, and are hereby acknowledged by bJth parties to have
been incurred by each.

ART. 9.-Grounds which bave been promised by the two parties, or either
()f them, to his 01' their hh'ed white volunteers, are hereby certainly and
distinctly secured and awarded to the said volunteers, and by consequence are
hereby fully acknowledged by both partiee.

AkT. 10.-In order to award these grounds properly and fully 'to the lawful
appearel's, and to cause them to be put in possession thereof, a Commission shall
be chosen and appointed, viz., two persons by the two Chiets, and a third
person shall be appointed and chosen by the lawful volunteers by a majority of
votes.

ART. 11.-The Commission shall go out and begin its lab ,urs within two
months from this date. This Commission shall beacon off these grounds
according to previously agreed-upon regnlations, and no farm shall be or be
made ofgreater extent than 3,00 ) (three thousand) morgen.

ART. 12.-" Grond brieven," 01' documents of ownership, shall be issued in
the form and terms and under the conditions such as are used by the South
African ltepublic, and shall be signed and registered by that Government in the
names of the lawful owners thereof.

ART. l3.-All white inhabitants of our land will be governed and controlled
by the Government of the South African Republic, and shall in regard thereof
stand under the laws thereof.

ART. 14.-In order to secure perpetual peace and rest a line shall be settled
between the telTitories of each of the Chiefs and his people, which appointed
line shall never for everlasting be trespassed over or violated.

Art. 15 -These lines shall Tun as is herein distinctly described.
Beginning at the point of the beacon of the South Ati'ican Republic at Ramat­

labama, thence in a straight line up the Molapo River, where a beacon shall be
placed at a distance of one mile 01' 1,700 yards on the upper side of Maffeking,
the old town of M.olerna, otherwise the at present defended place of Montsioa.
Thence a line sballl'un with the Molapo stream up to the point where the same
or its dh'actions touches the line or lines of other Chiefs living beyond the tar­
!'itories of our tribel!l.

ART. 16.-All grounds lying to the north or north-west of this line shall
henceforth and f..r the future indicate the territories of the Chief Mobtsioa and
his people. All grounds lying to the south 01' south-west shall be or indicate
the territories of the Chief Moshette and his people.

ART. 17.- Al ground which iA owing and must be ginn to the volunte8rs
()f both sides shall be taken and inspected within the lines as hereinafter
described, viz. :-From the beacon on the Molapo River, which, as has been
said. is at 1,700 yards or paces on the upper side of the town or positions DO\V
occupied by Montsioa (Maffeking), and thence along tile Molapo River to the
south-western side to where the same runs into the River Setlagolo, thence with
this Setlagola River to the SOUl'ce thereof, and thence up along the most south­
westerly spruit to the source thereof, and thence in a straight line up to the
outside of the established line of the South African Repub ic, and then with
the same line which runs along the great wagon road which goes from the
Saltpan and along the Tranl!lvaalline up to the beacon on the" Rooi Grond n
by the clump of trees, and thence along that line to the beacon at Buurman's
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Captain l\Ioshette.
Sechogo.
Phoe.
Seleka.
Mokolo.
:M.obros. Kholi.
:Molise.
Captain Matuba.
:Motseoa Khuma.
l\Iaano.
Abram Matuba.
Pete Matuba.
Andries Sihra.
J. D. S. Both&.
J. J. van Eeden.

Witnesses.
J. J. van Eedell.
J. n. S. Botho..

(Signed)
(Signed)

Drift, and thence to the point of Ramatlabama, and from the point RamatIa­
bama back in a straight line to the beacon to be erected 1,760 (1,700) yards
above the side of the town Maffeking, while in addition shall be excluded
the place Bietfontein, which shall be given Machabi.

ART. 18.-Both undersigning parties assent hereby after the passing
of tl is agreement to hold themselves sU'ictl, not to accept any new
inhabitants or Natives at present residing beyond this teJ.Titory, or to cause
them to come into or live in it without the previous knowledge and
concurrence of the Government of the South African Republic, nor shall any
white inhabitants be allowed within our land unless they will take the oath of
allegiance to the South African Republic.

ART. 19.-8eeing that the now too long waged war has not only occasioned
great injury, laying waste and bloodshed, in consequence of which a great
amount of debt liability has been incun'ed by the great Chief Moshette and his
peopl~ it is hereby agreed that the Captain Montsioa binds himself and his
people to pay for war expenses the sum of sixteen thousand pounds (£16,000)
sterling, in which is included £4,000, which has been incurred by Moshette and
occasioned by an armistice distinctly asked for by Montsioa and concUl1'ed in
by us. This amount shall be paid by Montsioa within one mouth from date in
good current money or real value.

ART.20.-All catt'e and goods which have been taken in booty during tile­
war by the hostile parties shall remain the lawful property of the possessors.
but all stolen cattle or goods taken from persons who have not been connected
with the war shall be immediately given back or the value theJ.'eofpaid to the
owner, with such reasonable amount for damage as shall be just and right.

ART. 21.-Atter the conclusion of this contract of peace no compla nts in
regard to former misdeeds perpetrated before the beginning of hostilities by
either of the parties shall be brought up against them; but this peace shall be a.
sufficient and full absolution on both sides, 110 reproaches shall be made, or any
disturbance created by the Chiefs or their subjects.

ART. 22. - For the fulfilment of all these articles of peace we, the two ChieDi,
bind ourselves and our subjects respectively; and we will move the Hononrab~e
the Executive Government of the South African Republic to make known this
contract ot peace to the Government of Her Britannic Majesty; and also in
case unfortunately any difference or disunion should lLl'ise between us for the
failing to truly follow up these articles of peace, it is fully concluded by this
contract of us and our council tllat the very Honourable the Governor of the
South Afl'ican Republic without any delay or invitation shall peremptorily
intervene, and, after full investigation, punisb the guilty to extremity.

This our agreement and contract of peace is concluded for the prevention of
further bloodshed and to establish peace and rest between us.

This done and ratified with our signatures in the presence of witnesses, with
the omission and supersession of Articlrs 3 (17) and 19, on this 24th day of
October, 1882.

Marks of Marks of
X Chief Mon~sioa. x
X Israel Molema. x
x Bani Tanana. X
X Motlare. X
X Holumel. x
X I{ebalepele Montsioa X
X Molobeng. X

X
X
X
x

(Signed)
X

(Signed)
(Signed)



APPENDIX G.

SPlilECB DilLIVERED BY 'IRE HON'. THOMAS UPINGTON' PREMIER OF THE
CAPE COLONY, AT nOOI GROND, ON FRIDA.Y, 28TH NOVEMBER, 1884, TO
THE BURGHERS OF LAND GOSHEN~ ON THE OCCASION OF THE LOCAL
ACCEPTANCE OIJl THE TERMS PROPOSED BY THE CAPE MINISTERS,
AS REPORTED BY THE O!>LY SHOR'l'HAND WB1:J:ER PRESENT.

Bnrgbers of the Land Goshen: -Ad I cannot express myself ill the Dutch
language, I haye requested my friend, Mi·. Van Eck~ to interpret for me, and I
will endeavour to speal~ ill such a way that you will understand what is con­
veyed to you through the mediulU of interpretation. I wislt to explain to you
what capacity I fill, and the reasons which have induced my colleagne and
myself to came to this r0111oto country. r represent the Responsible Govern­
ment of the Colony of the Cape of Good Hope. 1.'he Government of the
colonists with whom many of you fil'e closely related. When' dming the
present year there was a change ill Ministry, although not torn in thig. cOllntry,
I was selected as leader by a large section of colonists of Dutch and English
extraction, because it was known that after experience of my politics in this
colony I bad sympathy with the colonial party formed of persons belonging to
both nationalities, whose motto,vilS that South Africa shuu'd be governed by
the South Africans, that I arty holds that South African residents here are best
able to judge what the true colonial policy should be. We specially hold that
our native policy shoultl be under the entire control of the Colonial
Parliament and of the Ministry responsible to tltat Parliament. The
causes which have led to the mission of my colleague and myself here are these.
On entering into Office the 1)linistry, of which I have tlle honour to be tho
head, found a Brithih Protectorate established ovel· this country. 'Ve found
too tha.t disturbances had arisen likely to cause grave complications thronghout
~outh Africa. 'Vith a sincere desire to relieve Hel· Majesty's Imperial Govern­
ment of re~ponsibility, and to seCUl·e peace, we requested Her Majesty's repre­
sentative:to take our arlvice upon the subject. Her Majesty's representative, acting
within his undoubted right, declined to take our advice unless we consented to
undertake liability for all unknown expenditure, to which we could not agl·ee,
and the result was that the Government of this country continued to be carried
on by Hel· Majesty's Government without nny responsibility attaching to us.
That attempt at. GO"('l·nment, like all attempts to govern without consulting
the will of the people, was such a failure that forcible measures were determined
upon by Her Majesty"s Imperial Government. Extreme people applauded this
step; but we who were responsible to the Parliament of the colony for thd
peace of the colony, were in duty bound to endeavour to prevent war provided
we could secure colonial interests, and accordingly we asked fOI· permission to
proceed bere and see if we could settle the question without bloodshed.
"We said that we believed that the people would listen to us, and that we
should be successful ill obtaining without the horrors of war for the
colony all its objects fOl· the people here, security for their' bona fids
claims, and for the natives protection. Her Majesty's Impelial Government
again, acting within their undoubted light, would not consent to our coming
exCel)t under certain conditions. We requested that we should not be hampered
by conditions; but those conditions were insisted upon, and one of them was
tbat the Chief Montsioa should be restored to those lands to which he held
umlisturbed possession when the British Pl'otectorate was established. Hel·
Majest)', as head of the Protectorate, was clearly entitled to demand that her
Protectorate should be respected. Before I left the colony I was told in many
quarters that the people of this couotry would not aEisent to the conditions and
they they woulJ not vacate the land required by Montsioa. I ventm-ed to predict
tbat the inhabitants of the territory would have confidence in the Ministry
placed in office by the majority of the Cape colonists, and they would never let
it be said that they refused mediation. That prediction has come true with
reference to the population of Goshen. I am bOllnd to say that anyone coming
here will see as respectable and as law-abiding a people as there is to be ~und.

in South Africa. (Cheers.) In every community there are SDl"e to be found
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men of very bad loeputation, and I have no doubt thrlot in the La.nd of Goshen
and in Stallaland, there are men whose reputations are far from untainted; but,
be.ving made careful inqniry, I am bound.. to say tl1nt it is nnfaho to the people
of this country to be'stigmatized as DlurderCl"S and robbers-. There have been
things done in. this country which cannot be defended. I wish to speak plainly,
and I tell you emphatically that the shooting ofMI'. Bethell a& he la.y wounded
was an outrage which must cause intense pain. Mr. Bethell's. antecedents could
not possibly justif) EUch an act. 1 know that when there is a war a whole
people cpnonot be held responsible for the acts of a few men. Even ilLEUl'opean
countries, where warfue is conducted upon perfect principles, outrngei upon
wounded men have occurred, and tor such outrages it woul<l be absurd to blame
entire peopleo }"rom all I have heard, the people of the Land of Goshen are
not in sympathy with those who inflicted the death wound upon 1\tr. Bethell,
Indet>d, I have heard universal condenlDation of the deed, and I am glad to be
able to contradict the statement. that the corpse was trea~ed with indignity.
Warfare cannot anywhere be cal1.ied on without occurrences calc.ulated to shock
sensitive minds, but. I find. no proof that war haa been carried. on in this
conntry in a cruel or unfair ma.nner (Cl1eers.) Yon have been styled land
l'obberEl, bnt I 'ail to see where there has been plnndel' of land fl.·om Montsioa.
That Chief now gets under the settlement required by lIer Majesty's
Government, and cheerfully assented to by you, faJ: more land. than
he was entitlei. to 'UDder the treaty of 1882. By that treaty which
he entered into when. he was an independent Chief, and.. which
all his people looked upon as. binding, he gave up practically all hi!! lands south
of the Molopo River. I think it is to the credit of the peoplo of Land Goshen
bat they do Dot W8Ilt ta. unduly press him, and that at the request of the

Queen's Government they n·eeI,. assent to Montsioa'.s obtainiDg more land.. than
he agreed to be content with under his own Boltm1n compact. entered into with
Moshet e.. That's not land piunder. (Ch('ers.) It has also been alleged that
during the war women and children were killed by the so-called volunteers in
cold blood. I cannot find any evidence ill proof of that allegation, and it now
lies on those who made the chaloge to support it if they can. Such grave
charges should not be made without ample proof1 as they seriously mislead the
public, and I know they have caused great indignation against ~rou.. To unjust
ch8.1'gcs we are all liable. Even om' mission. here is made the snbject of
UDl-pa.ring and unjust comment in the En~lish press. I even find that the
injustice is·not confined to England, for at Du Toit's Pan no le~ a sum than
fifty pounds haa been subscribed in tlle86 bard times t01" the burning. of 1\11'.
fprigg and. myself in effigy. (Laughter.) My advice to you is now to go
about your daily a.vocations, cultivate the soil, advance yonI' pros­
perity, respect the rights of all pt>,}°sons, and forget the feeling
of h'l"itation cansed by what yuu see 10 the newspapers. When Parliament
mcets.lhe subject will be fully gone into, and I shall be prepared to defend the
general body of the people from gI'onndless charges. (Cheer.s.) I trust that the
result of the settlement now l'atified will not only be advantageous to yourselves
but a great benefit to l:nited South Afioica. (l heel'S:) 'Ve hal'e come to this
country with the best wishes of the Transvaal Government, and Her Majesty's
Imperial Government. ha,,-e expressed their pleasure at our undertaking to
intcnene. (Chea·s.) We have effected what we consider to be a fair and
equitable settlement; a settlemevt which, I believe, will bea.r lasting fruit, and
which, while securing to the Cape"colonists their interests in the interior, gives
ample land. to Montsioa, avoids the frightful consequences of war, and
will be another step towards making us a great and nnited people.
(Cheers.) In casting your lot with the Cape Colony you get the
benefit ot: a just system of laws made by Y0ul' own fellow-country­
men, and you will have peace and security for yom' persons and
pl'Operty. Pending fOloma!. annexation you are bound to carefully kE'ep the
peace and obey the laws, so that when Parliament meets you will not have
given your enemies an opportunity of saying a wcrd against you. Thereby you
will show that you are worthy of becoming Cape colonists. I thank you for tho
unvarying ldndness you batVo shown to my colleague and myselfduring our visit.
(EntllUsiastic cheering.)
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APPENDIX H.
CONDITIONS UNBER WHICH IT IS PROPOSED THAT THE TERRITORY KNOWN A~

LAND GOSHEN SHALL BE ANNEXED TO THE CAPE COLONY, SUBJECT TO'
THE APPROVAL OF HER MAJESTY'S IMPERIAL Go "ERNHENT AND THE
PARLIAHENT OF THE CAPE COL'JNY:-

First. As imperatively required by Her Majesty's Imperial Government,
the Chief Montsioa to be replaced iB occupation of ., the garden grounds and
grazing lands of which the Chief and his tribe wer, in the ul'ldisturbed
pOllsession in May last, when they were formally taken under British
protection." .

To this condition the following explanatory Note balll been attached:­
It appeal s to the Cape Ministers that tho object of Her Majesty's Imperii"1
Government can be secured by giving to Monts'oa and his pe,'ple-wh) Are
not numerous-tho ground as formerly enjoyed by him and them at Maffd­
king, Se':ubn tlnd Saliris, with ample grazing ground on the North Bank of
the Molopo River. For this purpose the grounds at Maffeking, Sehuba and
Saliris must be vacated by all white settlerd, but a9 certain four or five per­
80ns acquired before the formal establishment of the Briti h Protectorate­
bona fide rights by purchase or otherwise t) farms in the districts proposed to­
be cleared, land of equal value shall b3 grant3d to such occlIpiers elsewhel'e
by the Commis!ion subsequently mentioned. The Chief Montsioa Laing'
absent, and it not b~ing at present possib e to ascertain his desires, the
Cape Ministers are not able to sa)9 whether Montsioa and his
tribe may not prdfer to have an extension of arable land along the
Molopo River instead of resuming occupation of Sehuba. and Saliris,
and consequently thQ arrangement above proposed l00y by the consent of all
parties be altered, but the direction of Her Majesty's Imperial Government
must be obeyedt and either the land at Maffeking, Sehuba. and Sali/is, or
sufficient land elElewhere, if desired by Montsioa, be secured to that Chief
and his people. .

Second. All rights to land enjoyed b)7 white seWers under grant or transfer
before the formal establishment of the British Protectorate, to be respected
in the same manner as arranged in Stell.Aland between Her Majesty's Deputy
Commissioner an ~ th9 Inhabitan's of that Territory, and quitrents to be ...lso
paid as provided in Stellaland.

Third. After complying with the direction of Her Mdojesty's Imperial Gov­
ernment with r.:>gard to Montsioa ani his trib", and after securing the lawful
rights possessed by white settlers before the form 11 establishment of the
Protectorate, the remaining vacant lands shall be disposed of in the following
manner :-(a) A Commission shall be appointed consisting of one nominee
of the Cape Government, one nominee of the Existing Begtuur of Land
Goshen, and Mr. G. J. van Niekark as President. (b) Such Commission to
enquire into and decide what persons have acquired bona fide rights to vacant
land, and to make provision for such righttl accordingly. (c) The l'esidue
of the vacant land to be waste Crown Lands of the Colony, (d) Titles to
land or confirmations of existing titles where necessary to be issued IlS soon
as possible.

Fourth. -The existing debt of the country shall be enquired into and duly
audited, with a vie,,· to communications on tle subject wi'h Her Majesty's
Imperial Government.

Fiftll.-Pending the establishment of a fixed form of Government an
officer shall be appointed by the Colonial Government who 8~aIl in conjunc­
tion with existing B~stuur of Land Gos'1en administer the. affaira of the
country and carry into effect the foregoing conditions,. and the inhabitants
shall freely aid and assist in maintaining order and protecting the rights of
all persons living in the country. No act of the said Bestuur shall be vaHd
nntil approved of by the officer so to be appointed.

(Signed) THOMAS UPINGTON.
J. GORDON SPRIGG.
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In acceptAnce of thege cOl1diti~ns ui added the following :-
We, the undersigned, h"ving read the conditions under which the Territory

called the Land of Gcosen is to be annexed to the Cape Colo11y, do accept tboee
conditions, subject to the approval of the people of the Land Goo&en, and do
cede aud tl'aDsfm· to the Cape Colony all our rights whicq we have possessed in.
the ten·it01·y called tile Land ot Goosen. In witness whereof we have signed a.t
Heliopolis, this twentyo/second day of November, 1884.

(Signed) N. C. GEY VAN prrTIUS, Administrator ofLand Goosen.
P. F. DE VJIJLIERS.
C. J. WEBER.
J. G. J. VILJOEN.
G. P. OTTO.
S. N. DE BRUIN BOUGA, Gcvernment Secretary.

Witnesses: C. J. VAN NIEKEB.X, H. J. ScHOEMAN.

The foregoing ConditioDlJ, bavirig been read before a Public MeetIng on the
28th NoveDlbel', 1884, wel'e unanimously accepted by the people.

APPENDIX J.
MINUTE OF HIS EXCELLENOY THE GOVERNOR AND HIGH COMMISSIONER WITH

REFERENCE TO THE CONDITIONS :PBQPOSED BY MINISTERS.

South Africa.-Minute No. 56,
Govemment House, Cape Town,

6th December, 1884.
The Governor having transmitted to the Secretary of State "in extenso"

the telegra.m addressed by Ministers to the Honourable the Commissioner of
Crown Lands from Rooi Grond, and dated the 22nd ultimo, is now instructed
to inform Ministers as follows :- .
~er Majesty's Government are willing to agree to the :ftl·st condition as

telegraphed by Ministers, namely, that" the Chief Montsioa be replaced in
occupation of the garden grounds and grazing lands of which the Chief and his
tribe were in the undisturbed. possession in May last when they were formally
taken under British protection," and they will desire Major-General Sir C.
Warren to carry out this agreement peacefully if practicable; but the words
"undisturbed. possession" are not to be governed by the Treaty of 1882.

As to conditions 2 and 3, Her Majesty's GoverDment cannot recognize the
"bona fide" character ot the claims of the freebooters to land in Montsioa's
country, but questions affecting the permanent disposal of land beyond the
territory to .be reserved for Montsioa would in the opinion of Her Majesty's
Government be matters f01· the consideration of the Cape Parliamant when the
question of annexation comes before it.

The ~th condition Her Majesty's Government coDsider requires explanation.
It is obvious that the Imperial Government cannot be committed to meet the
expenditure of tll08e who infHnged the British Protec'Ol'ate. Otherwise they
would have no objection to consider the financial condition of the teJTitory.

As to the 5th condition, until Ministers are authorized. by Parliament to take
over the country, Hl'r Majesty's Government must retain tIle Admiuistl·ation to
the Protectorate in thebe own hands; and Sir C. Warren will be instructed ot
occupy the country with an adequate force But so long ai the fir~t condition
is being faithfully obsel'ved, he will allow other matters to l'emaiu as far us
possible in sta,ttl, quo peeding the meeting of the Cape Pal'1iament, which, it is
hoped, will be summoned as soon as possible.

HERCULES ROBINSON,
High Commissioner

I






	Chapter_5

	p50_i
	p51
	p52
	p53
	p54
	p55
	p56
	p57
	p58
	p59
	p60
	p61
	p62
	p63
	p64
	p65
	p66
	p67
	p68
	p69
	p70
	p70_i

	Chapter_6

	p72
	p73
	p74
	p75
	p76
	p77
	p78
	p79
	p80
	p81
	p82
	p83
	p84
	p85
	p86
	p87
	p88
	p89

	BackPages

	bp_ii
	bp_iii
	bp_iv
	bp_v
	bp_vi
	bp_vii
	bp_viii
	bp_ix
	bp_x
	bp_xi
	bp_xii
	bp_xiii
	bp_xiv
	bp_xv
	bp_xvi
	bp_xvii
	bp_xviii
	bp_xix
	bp_xx
	bp_xxi
	bp_xxii
	bp_xxiii

	BackCover
	SideCover
	FrontInfo-p49


